Out of scope

From: David Bowden

Sent: Wednesday, 23 October 2013 10:06 a.m.

To: Clif Corbett

Cc: Fiona Macmaster

Subject: RE: Contract q Withheld under sections 9(2)(a)

Hi Clif - Jo is away this week, but | was talking to about something else and took the
opportunity to ask about Sharp Design. It isn’t a company that she has commissioned any work from for
Shaping Our Future. had asked her about an invoice a while ago, but she wasn't able to shed
any light on it. said all of the design work on Shaping Our Future that she is aware of had been
sourced through Of course, that doesn'’t rule out Jo (or someone else in the Ministry) having
commissioned the work, but it does seem a bit mysterious.

Withheld under section 9(2)(b)(ii)

David

From:/‘Clif Corbett
Sent: Wednesday, 23 October 2013 9:28 a.m.

To: Fiona Macmaster
Subject: RE: Contract q Withheld under section 9(2)(a)

Just to confirm our discussion, Fiona, there appears to be no written contract in place, either to my
knowledge or [l The fundamental rule is that no work is to be undertaken without a written
contract in place.

From: Fiona Macmaster _
Sent: Wednesday, 23 October 2013 8:49 a.m.

To: Clif Corbett
Subject: RE: Contract q

They are doing work on Shaping our Future for CPD and we seem to be putting a reasonable amount
through them. I'll check $s.

Its another of those interesting ones and as the programme has already attracted some interest from
SSC | want to make sure we're squeaky clean! At one point there was a comment that it was cheap as
they're friends but while lovely, this is not necessarily a good look either

If we are buying services, at what point is a contract required? My view is that any service requires
some sort of agreement

Fiona Macmaster




Withheld under section 9(2)(a)

‘ Manaier Finance, MoT

From: Clif Corbett

Sent: Wednesday, 23 October 2013 8:40 a.m.
To: Fiona Macmaster

Subject: RE: Contractq

| haven’t heard of them, Fiona.

Clif

From: Fiona Macmaster

Sent: Tuesday, 22 October 2013 3:42 p.m,
To: Clif Corbett

Subject: Contract q

Do we have a contract with Sharp Design?

Fiona Macmaster
Manager Finance
Ministry of Transport — Te Manatiit Waka

www.!ransgo!.govt_nz



Withheld under section 9(2)(a)

From: David Bowden

Sent: Friday, 1 November 2013 2:28 p.m.
To: Martin Matthews

Subject: RE: Contracts

Yes, a reminder of some kind is clearly required. I'll talk to Fiona and put something together.

David

From: Martin Matthews

Sent: Friday, 1 November 2013 2:09 p.m.
To: David Bowden

Subject: RE: Contracts

Hi David,

Thank you for informing me of this. | agree with your sentiment.

| wonder if we should do something to remind MLT members (and their EAs) of the policy and expectations
for how we manage procurement and contracting. This could be by way of email from me with a follow up
discussion at a subsequent MLT meeting.

WF]at do you think? If you agree perhaps betWeen you and Fiona you could draft something for me.

Cheers,

Ma:rtin '

From DaVId Bowden

Sent: Friday, 1 November 2013 12:34 p.m.
To: Martin Matthews

Subject: FW: Contracts

Hi Martin,
Just keeping you informed ...

See the email below. How can a senior person in any organisation credibly claim to be unaware of the
need for a contract when getting external providers to do work? | find it astounding. :

- It also sets a bad example. In an email about a different general manager and contracting that | sent to
Andrew earlier in the year (while you were away) | raised a similar point:

If general managers pay no regard to proper process, what kind of example does that set for the
rest of the organisation? It says that these things are not important and that there are no
consequences for ignoring them. No wonder procurement is consistently the weakest area in our
compliance survey. And it will stay that way as long as ignoring the rules is sanctioned at the most
senior levels of the organisation.

I had a quick chat to Fiona, who has already identified a challenge to answering some of the select
committee questions about contracting where contracts do not exist. It is difficult to get additional
information about payments where there is no contract to indicate what work we have paid for (and the
invoices provide little detail).

David




Withheld under section 9(2)(a)

From: Joanne Harrison

Sent: Wednesday, 30 October 2013 5:45 p.m.
To: Clif Corbett

Cc:

Subject: Contracts

Hi Cliff

Il has just spoken to me about arranging contracts with various providers, 1 did not know we had to do
this when we sent work out to be done, | thought that we only arranged this when folks were contracted to
work inside here with us, so my apologies if anything has been missed in the past.

will arrange a contract for for the cover when | am away. i}, Sharp-Design,

will no longer be working with me as part of our OD restructure includes all of this work being done
internally at much less cost, for example with a shared graduate and up skilling the graphic designer and
business support roles. They are obviously disappointed with this; one provider in particular has been very
cold upon hearing the news! There will be no need to do any contract agreements with all of these
providers and potentially one or two more as the restructure takes effect from December 2013, we should
become self sufficient!

1 will keep you informed and will organise contracts as | engage future providers now | know what is
expected.

Regards
Jo

Jo Harrison
General Manager - Organisational Development
Ministry of Transport — Te Manati Waka

I . ar0ort G0V 2

Ensuring our transport system helps New Zealand thrive
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Withheld under section 9(2)(a)

To:

[

From:

Sent: Sun 1/12/2013 4:04:32 p.m
; Subject:  Invoice
f MAIL RECEIVED:  Sum 1/12/2013 4:04:48 p.m

cipdinvmot.docx -

Please find attached our final invoice for 2013.

May we thank you for your continued business as well as your bright idea’s that have helped us
service your needs this year. i

Have a restful holiday and a superb start to 2014.

Kind Regards

) All at SDzine







Fan™

Withheld under section 9(2)(a)

Joanne Harrison
To: Joanne Harrison
Subject: FW: Website order: Write Style Guide for New Zealanders

Hello Jo

Thanks foryour order. I'll post your Style Guides today along with an invoice. | told vou we had the best price in
town!!

Kind regards
M

From: Joanne Harriso
Sent: Monday, 27 January 2014 8:59 a.m,
Subject: Website order: Write Style Guide for New Zealanders

Name: Joanne Harrison
Organisation: Ministry of Transport
Postal address: 89 The Terrace PO Box 3175 Wellington 6140

Phone: [N
emai:

Number of style guides: 2 concept designs — order 50

Many thanks

MINISTRY OF TRANSPORT

Wellington (Head Office) | 89 The Terrace | PO Box 3175 | Wellington 6140 | NEW ZEALAND | Tel: +64 4 439 8000
| Fax: +64 4 439 9001

Auckland | NZ Government Auckland Policy Office | 46 Queen Street | PO Box 106238 | Auckland City | Auckland
1143 | NEW ZEALAND | Tel: +64 @ 9854827 | Fax: +64 0 9854849

Christchureh | 7 Winston Avenue, Papanui | Christchurch 8140 | NEW ZEALAND | Tel: +64 3 366 9304 | Fax: +64 3

; 366 9317

Disclaimer:This email is oniy intended to be read by the named recipient. it may contain information which is
confidential, proprietary or the subject-of legal privilege. If you are not the intendad recipient you must delete this
emall and may not use any information contained in it. Legal privilege is not waived because you have read this email,
Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail






Withheld under section 9(2)(a)

Joanne Harrison

From:

Sent: Monday, 10 Febfuary 2014 8:59 p.m.
To: Joanne Harrison

Subject: Re: coaching booklet

Attachments: MOT COACHING BOOK 1 (Final).pdf

This one could also help.

We look forward to seeing you next week to discuss Leading Together.
Let us know what venue you. prefes:

On Mon, Feb 10,2014 at 8:51 PM,
HiJo

- Further to your request perhaps the coaching booklet has useful parts to extrapolate for the Govemnance
- staff? I think this would be pitched at a higher level and is more in depth.

Please let me know if you need anything further. I can send on the Caravan of Love work for the storyboard
for SSC if you like?

Kind Regards
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Withheld under section 9(2)(a),
e except as noted otherwise

Joanne Harrison

From:

Sent: Monday, 31 March 2014 9:20 p.m.
To: Joanne Harrison

Subject: Re: Work completed for April

Thanks for the confirmation. I will ensure delivery of all of the content by 3 April.

Regards

On Mon, Mar 31, 2014 at 12:13 PM, Joanne Harrison_wrote: ‘

Hi there

(" Further to our meeting on Friday | will need 50 workbooks, using the agreed content and covers
~ with the Ministry's new brand front and centre.

| appreciate this has caused some last minute rework — but it keeps you young changing things for
the better and you know that is how we work herel

I will authorise payment of the 25-40 hours @ $85 as we agreed, plus print and supply costs of
$35 per book. The one minute manager books have been supplied by

so we are all good there. The G2G presentations need to be perfect so expect
much iteration there!

Withheld under section 9(2)(b)(ii)

As your services are expanding in July | look forward to engaging with you further. | always
- appreciate the fast turnaround time with you guys, it does

make you stand out from the rest so keep up the good work. 1 like the new name too!
Regards
Jo

Jo Harrison

General Manager - Organisational Development






Lo Withheld under section 9(2)(a)

Joanne Harrison

——
From:
Sent: . Wednesday, 16 April 2014 1:11 p.m.
To: Joanne Harrison
Subject: Re: Data for analysis
Good morning

I have further information for when you return to Wellington, 1 think we are getting closer.
Have a good holiday weekend.

Regards.

On Thursday, April 10, 2014, I -

Many thanks.

f \ I now how information that may be of interest in the case, I will call you tomorrow to discuss.

w

On Wednesday, April 9, 2014, Joanne Hamson_wrot_e:

Hi there

As discussed this morning.

Please can you pay attention to the date/time/person indicated?
Many thanks for your help.

Regards

Jo

Jo Harrison

' General Manager - Organisational Development

Ministry of Transport — Te Manati Waka

Ensuring our transport system helps New Zealand thrive

MINISTRY OF TRANSPORT

Wellington (Head Office) | 89 The Terrace | PO Box 3175 | Wellington 6140 | NEW ZEALAND | Tel: +64
4 439 9000 | Fax: +64 4 439 9001

Auckland | NZ Government Auckland Policy Office | 45 Queen Street | PO Box 106238 | Auckland City |
Auckland 1143 | NEW ZEALAND | Tel: +64 9 9854827 | Fax: +64 9 9854849

Christchurch | 7 Winston Avenue, Papanui | Christchurch 8140 | NEW ZEALAND | Tel: +64 3 366 9304 |
Fax: +64 3 366 9317

Disclaimer:This email is only intended to be read by the named recipient. It may contain information which
is confidential, proprietary or the subject of legal privilege. If you are not the intended recipient you must
delete this email and may not use any information contained in it. Legal privilege is not waived because you
have read this email.

1






.

Withheld under section 9(2)(a)

Joanne Harrison . —~~_

From:
Sent: Thursday, 8 May

014 7:46 p.m.
Subject: Professional search¥ees . -

To: Joanne Harrison
Attachments: MoTinvest.docx

We look forward to progressing things with §ou this weekend.
Kind Regards







Withheld under section 9(2)(a)

Joanne Harrison _

From:

Sent: Thursday, 8 May 2814 7:38 p.m.

To: Joanne Harrison

Subject; Fwd: Invoice for confidential serwces
Attachments: MoTinvest.docx

Further to confidential action/distussions please find attached i mvowe for services that I suggest you black /

out before processing. .
We will meet 3 ay at 10.30am to commence installation. T e e
Kind Regards

.






 On Mon, May 19, 2014 at 4:36 PM, Joanne Harrison _Wrote:

Withheld under section 9(2)(a)

Joanne Harrison

Subject: Securily reports
Attachments: MoTinvest.docx

will meet you at 11am to continue,
Please find attached the invoice as you requested.

Regards

As discussed, please complete your analysis and come back to me.
Kind Regards

Jo

From

Sent: Monday, 19 May 2014 4:33 p.m.
To: Joanne Harrison

Subject: Security reports

';:HiJo

Please see attached reports over those two weekends we discussed — apologies for the delay!
There are two particular names that keep cropping up over the weekend outside business hours.

MINISTRY OF TRANSPORT

Wellington {Head Office) | 83 The Tefrace | PO Box 3175 | Wellington 6140 | NEW ZEALAND | Tel: 64 4 439 9000
{ Fax: +64 4 439 9001

Auckland | NZ Government Auckland Policy Office | 45 Queen Street | PO Box 106238 | Auckland City | Auekiahd
1143 | NEW ZEALAND | Tel; +64 9 9854827 | Fax: +54.0 8854848

Christchurch | 7 Winston Avenue, Papanui’| Chrisichurch 8440 | NEW ZEALAND | Tel: #64: 3 366 9304 | Fax: +64 3
366 9317
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From: Joanne Harrison ..
Sent: Wednesday, 30 October 2013 5:45 p.m. 9(2)(a), 9(2)(b) (i)

To: Clif Corbe
Cc:

Subject: Contracts

Hi Cliff

-has just spoken to me about arranging contracts with various providers, 1 did not know we had to
do this when we sent work out to be done, | thought that we only arranged this when folks were
contracted to work inside here with us, so my apologies if anything has been missed in the past.

I i arrange a contract for || or the cover when | am away. Il Sharp-
Design, will no longer be working with me as part of our OD restructure includes all of this work
being done internally at much less cost, for example with a shared graduate and up skilling the graphic
designer and business support roles. They are obviously disappointed with this; one provider in
particular has been very cold upon hearing the news! There will be no need to do any contract
agreements with all of these providers and potentially one or two more as the restructure takes effect
from December 2013, we should become self sufficient!

I will keep you informed and will organise contracts as | engage future providers now | know what is
expected.

Regards
Jo

Jo Harrison
General Manager - Organisational Development
Ministry of Transport — Te Manatii Waka

Ensuring our transport system helps New Zealand thrive




From: Joanne Harrison Withheld under section 9(2)(a) unless indicated

Sent: Monday, 18 August 2014 10:43 a.m.

Cc: Cif Corbett
Subject: RE: Contracts for Goods and Services in 2013/14

v I

These suppliers were engaged for several different projects, most of which were well under $100k
individually so the blue forms were not completed, | did check this at the time.

Both suppliers have been discontinued as we have brought the capabiiity in house with 2 graduates.
If you require me to backdate contracts and get signatures I can contact them and organise that.

Regards
Jo

reor
Sent: Monday, 18 August 2014 10:33 a.m.

To: Joanne Harrison
Cc: Clif Corbett
Subject: Contracts for Goods and Services in 2013/14

Jo,

When preparing the answers in May for the Estimates Select Committee questions we found that some
Suppliers had been engaged, but we did not appear to have a contract recorded in the contracts
database. Some have since been filed, but we were unable to find copies of contracts for the following
Suppliers used in your area.

Withheld under section 9(2)(b)(ii)

Shari Desiin ITotaI siend in 2013/14 i123|348|

As procurement is an area that our auditors are likely to cover when they are here in a few weeks time
please forward any outstanding contracts to Legal for recording in the Contracts database




R

Minis tl‘y of Transpo rt Withheld under section 9(2)(a) except where noted ’

TE MANATO WAKA

To: MLT MEMORANDUM
From: Clif Corbett
Date: 28 August 2014

Through: Lisa Nickson

Subject: Compliance Report: July 2013 — June 2014 Survey

This memorandum reports on the compliance survey that was undertaken during July/August
2014. The reporting period covered by the survey is 1 July 2013 to 30 June 2014. The survey
was undertaken using the ComplyWith survey program.

The conduct of a compliance survey is undertaken to meet the requirement of the Audit Office
that there be a mechanism in place for monitoring the Ministry’s compliance with its statutory
obligations, and to alert management to issues of sub-optimal compliance. Consequently the
Audit Office takes a close interest in the results of the survey.

Executive Summary

In general the latest survey shows a continued high level of compliance, and no major issues
are apparent from the survey responses. However, there is a matter of importance that has
emerged outside of compliance survey reporting which is discussed later in this report.

—'  Withheld under section 9(2)(g)(3)

Among the other instances of less than full compliance, of note is the erroneous Protected
Disclosures Act guidance material on the intranet.

Conduct of survey

The positions requested to complete the survey are managerial positions. in addition there is
one other staff member included in the survey —

Responses were received from all survey recipients apart from
An email reminder was sent to outstanding survey recipients on 30 July, the
date before the due date for survey completion.

An extract report showing compliance level ratings and related comments (but excluding N/A
and “Full” ratings with no comments) is attached for reference.

The survey —

(a) covers the legislation that materially applies to the Ministry’s operations. [n addition to ;
legislation, the survey includes questions in relation to compliance with procurement |
requirements, and to oversight of the Crown entities;

HEAD DFFICE: PO Box 3173, Wellington, New Zealand. TEL: +64 4 4721253, FAX: +64 4 473 3697
AUCKLAND OFFICE: The Government Economic and Urban Development Office, PO Box 106 238, Auckland City, New Zealand. TEL: 464 9 3790070, FAX: +564 9 985 4849
CHRISTCHURCH OFF(CE: PO Box 3014, Christchurch, New Zealand, TEL: +64 3 366 9304, FAX: +64 3 366 9317



(b)

(©)

Withheld under section 9(2)(g)(i)

is directed at the positions within the Ministry that are considered best placed to answer
the questions. Where appropriate, the same questions are directed at more than one
position;

has a pre-set range of available response levels. The possible response levels
comprise: N/A; None (0-25% compliant); Low (26-50% compliant); Medium (51-75%
compliant); High (76-99% compliant); and Full (100% compliant). Explanatory
comments are mandatory for all levels except N/A and Full.

Analysis/discussion of results

(a)

(b)

(©)

Contract Documentation
Work commencing before contract signed

There were only 2 reported instances of non-compliance within an overall context of
“full” compliance. This was 4 fewer than for the last survey period.

Variations increasing total price to more than the GETS threshold

There was one reported instance of a contract variation taking the contract value over
the GETS threshold. This was advised to the Chief Executive and approved in
advance, based on the consultant’s specialist expertise and project knowledge.

Procurement without written contracts

As a result of Finance scrutinising past payments of invoices, it became apparent (and
has since been confirmed) that there have been numerous instances of invoices
received and paid in circumstances where no written contracts existed for the services
in gquestion. These largely concerned the Organisational Development area and two
particular suppliers. The Organisational Development instances are significant because
of some individual amounts and the cumulative amount involved. (There were several
other invoices from three suppliers in the NZSAR area where, in the case of one
supplier, supplier pro forma contracts have been used.)

The fact that the compliance survey did not reveal these instances of non-compliance
(despite, in the case of the Organisational Development instances, the matter first being
raised in October 2013) is of concern. There are questions in the Procurement Policy
section of the survey (see page 8 of the attached extract report) that are explicit on the
matter of contract documentation and these should have elicited a qualified response.

Timing of decisions on Official Information requests

This concerns the provision of a response within the 20 working day deadline. There
continues to be generalised reporting of missed deadlines against an overall “high” level

Annual Procurement Plan

The previous Mandatory Rules for Procurement by Departments required departments
to publish on GETS, by 1 July each year, a rolling Annual Procurement Plan, to be
updated at least every six months. The Plan is required to contain a short strategic
procurement outlook supported by details of any planned procurement above the



(d)

(e)

Y

(9

$100,000 threshold, including the estimated date of publication of a notice of intended
procurement on GETS.

With the advent of the new Government Rules of Sourcing on 1 October 2013, the
requirements around prospective procurements have been enlarged. In addition to
Annual Procurement Plans (the requirements for which remain largely unchanged),
agencies are required to submit to MBIE (and update at the beginning of each financial
year) a Strategic Procurement Outlook, and an Annual Procurement Forecast.

The Ministry’s practice had been to file a pro forma outlook, which advised that the
nature of the Ministry’s prospective procurements is not sufficiently known in advance to
provide details of planned procurements.

In light of the new requirements, the Ministry has revised its approach to ensure that it is
fully compliant with the new Rules.

Protected Disclosures

The most recent guidance (2009) provided on the intranet is incorrect and inconsistent,
and requires correction.

Holidays Act

Some sick/bereavement leave entitlements have not been paid within the requisite pay
period due to late notification of the leave having been taken.

Fire Safety and Evacuation of Buildings

There have been some instances of staff carrying items down the stairwells during fire
evacuation drills, posing a hazard to other evacuees.

Copyright

An instance has been noted where attribution was not acknowledged on all
images/maps used in a presentation given to the Minister.

Comparison with previous survey results

The item in (b) continues to be the principal area of less than full compliance.

Actions taken subsequent to previous report

The following actions were taken to address the matters revealed by the previous survey as
requiring remedial attention:

(a)

(b)

Contract documentation:

We have almost completed a revision of the Procurement Policy that takes account of
the new Government Rules of Sourcing. Another objective of the revision has been to
make the Policy more user-friendly and coherent in its presentation.

Timing of decisions on OlA requests:




(c)

Withheld under section 9(2)(g)(i)

Annual Procurement Plan:

Legal and Finance have discussed how the information in the Business Plan of likely
procurements can be used to make the Annual Procurement Plan published on GETS
more informative. The new Rules also require the regular filing of a Strategic
Procurement Qutlook and Extended Procurement Forecasts. This collection of filings is
being undertaken by Finance.

Proposed actions

The following actions are proposed to address the matters revealed by the latest survey as
requiring remedial attention:

()

(b)

(©)

(d)

Contract documentation

The Organisational Development issue has been the subject of discussions at senior
management level. Assurances have been given that the proper processes will be
observed in future. Legal is working with NZSAR Secretariat to put in place appropriate
template agreements that can be used for the future.

Staff will be exhorted to send signature copies of all minor pro forma supplier contracts
to Legal so that they can be recorded in the appropriate databases. All other contracts
are to be forwarded to Legal for vetting or drafting, in accordance with the Procurement
Policy.

[In the rare circumstance where it is not considered feasible to comply with standard
procedures (for example for confidentiality reasons), there should be a policy direction
that there must be a discussion with the Chief Executive or the Chief Legal Adviser
before work commences, and a written record made of the justification for non-
compliance.]

Protected Disclosures:

Action is being taken to review the intranet guidance and promulgate a corrected,
single-source, version. The inaccurate material has been withdrawn in the meantime.

Copyright:

The copyright policy is about to be updated and re-promulgated on the intranet.



Withheld under section 9(2)(a)

Timing of next survey

The next survey will be in respect of the period 1 July 2014 to 30 June 2015, and will be
conducted during July 2015.

Recommendations

It is recommended that —

. MLT note the contents of this report Yes/No
. The proposed actions be agreed Yes / No
Clif Corbett
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From:

Sent: Friday, 29 August 2014 9:23 a.m.
To: Lisa Nickson

Subject: Email requested

Fiona asked me to forward this to you.

Cheers

Sent with Good (www.good.com)

o o e e i et

From:
Sent: Friday, July 25, 2014 04:37 PM New Zealand Standard Time
To:

Subject: RE: Assistance Required

Good Afternoon,

Please see below a request we received regarding Ministry of Transport employee Joanne Harrison
Joanng arrives back into Wellington today from Manchester at 4.35pm

We suggest you gain contact with Joanne and advise her of a possible security issue as below

Any questions please let me know

Thanks

Atlantic Pacific Amierican Express
Level 30, Plimmer Towers, 2-6 Gilmer Terrace
PO Box 3030, Wellington 6140, New Zealand

WWW.apX.Co.NZ

Independently owned and operated by Atlantic & Pacific Business Travel Ltd

This e=mail. message contains information that may be subject to privilege.. Ifyou are not the intended redpient, you must not peruse, Use, disserminate, distribute or copy this message: If you have
received this message In error, please notify us immediately. The views expressed in this e-mall are those of the individual and may not reflect the views of Atlantic Padfic American Express.
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From: [N

Sent: Friday, 25 July 2014 4:25 p.m.

To:
Subject: RE; Assistance Required

il

I have been advised that the New Zealand Privacy Legislation does not allow us to provide this information
directly to you. Can | suggest that you contact the New Zealand Police and then they can make a formal
request siting the relevant authority.

Regards

Atlantic Pacific American Express
Level 30, Plimmer Towers, 2-6 Gilmer Terrace
PO Box 3030, Wellington 6140, New Zealand

WWW.apx.co.Nnz

This e-mail message contains information that is confidential and which may be subject to privilege. If you are
not the intended recipient, you must not peruse, use, disseminate, distribute or copy this message.

If you have received this message in error, please notify us immediately. The views expressed in this e-mail
are those of the individual and may not reflect the views of Atlantic Pacific American Express.

rror S

Sent: Friday, 25 July 2014 4:08 p.m.
To:
Subject: Assistance Required

+i S
As per our phone conversation, | am trying to locate the whereabouts of a person of interest to our office, namely
Joanne HARRISON (D.O.Bi.

Our enquiries have revealed you booked a flight for Mrs HARRISON and possibly for,
flying retum from Wellington to Manchester via Auckland and Dubai, departing Wellington on 09/07/2014
retuming 25/07/2014.



Withheld under section 9(2)(a)
Could you please assist us with any details Mrs HARRISON may have provided you i.e: residential address,
postal address, contact phone number, email address, etc; when she made her booking. Could you also supply
any credit card details that she used to pay for her flights.

Your assistance in this matter would be greatly appreciated.

Regards,

Victoria Police | Fraud & Extortion Squad

Level 5, 452 Flinders Street; Melbourne, 3000 DX: 210007

EMATL DISCLAIMER
This email and any attachments are thé property of Victoria Police and should not

be disclosed. They may also be subject to copyright.

If you are not an intended recipient of this email please immediately contact us
by replying to this email and then delete this email. You must not read, use,

A:opy, retain, forward or disclose this email or any attachment.

We do not accept any liabllity arising from or in connection with unauthorised

use or disclosure of the information contained in this email or any attachment.

We make reasonable efforts to protect against computer viruses but we do not
accept liability for any liability, loss or damage caused by any computer virus

contained in this email.






Withheld under section 9(2)(b)(ii)

From: Martin Matthews <m.matthews@transport.govt.nz>
Sent: Monday, 1 September 2014 4:52 p.m.

To: Lisa Nickson

Subject: FW: Contracting issues

FYI

From: Martin Matthews

Sent: Monday, 1 September 2014 4:52 p.m.
To: Joanne Harrison

Subject: FW: Contracting issues

Hi,

| have just been meeting with Lisa and Clif about the annual Comply With survey. The report on this
(which will go to the auditors) will reveal your non-compliance with our procedures was nhot revealed
when the survey was completed. This can presumably be explained on the basis that, as explained by
you below, at the time of completing the survey you would not have been aware of the non-compliance.
The consequence of this report is however that the matter will be directly drawn to the attentjon of the
auditors who may seek further information about these arrangements than | have asked you to provide
me. This has caused me to re-assess whether we may need further information for our records to
satisfy potential audit questions about the basis for the arrangements, particularly with Sharp Design.

In your last email to me you suggested | might make direct contact with and Mark Sharp. |
understand from CIif that the Ministry has a long standing relationship with and that we would
have sufficient background information to demonstrate why services would have been procured from
them. The same however is not the case with Sharp Design. | have therefore asked Lisa to make
contact with Mark Sharp and request if he could provide a profile of the company and other information
that we might usefully hold on our files about the nature and extent of their services. This will hopefully
satisfy any future questions that may be asked about the basis for the Ministry obtaining the range of
services they supplied. it won't address the non-compliance with our procurement procedures, which is
simply a matter of fact.

| wanted to let you know directly that | have asked Lisa to follow this up, just in case you had a query
from Mark Sharp about the basis for the questions.

Thanks,
Martin

From: Martin Matthews

Sent: Wednesday, 27 August 2014 9:00 a.m,
To: Joanne Hatrrison

Subject: RE: Contracting issues

Jo,

Thank you for the explanation of the services provided by the two firms, and the circumstances under
which they came to be the providers of these. | am satisfied that, on the basis of the explanations given,
no further enquiry or action is required in relation to this matter.

Nonetheless, it remains of concern to me that the Ministry’s policies and procedures for procurement
were not adhered to. These requirements exist to ensure we can be demonstrate wise and proper use
of the public money entrusted to us. This is something | personally regard is important for the reputation
and standing of the Ministry. While | am satisfied your intentions were consistent with the desire to
deliver value for money from this spending, the manner in which you procured them has led to the sorts
of questions and concerns | have had to raise with you. This could have been avoided if the proper
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procedures had been followed.

I want to be clear with you that it is my expectation that you will at all times in future comply with
Ministry policies and procedures for procurement and contracting of services. | note that you have
earlier indicated to me thatium over see these arrangements on your behalf. | think this is a
sensible arrangement. | acknowledge that there may be future circumstances where confidentiality is
required, and where it may not be possible to comply with standard procedures. Although this should
be an exceptional situation, where it is required, | would recommend this be discussed with either
myself or my Chief Legal Adviser and a written record made of any decisions to not comply with
standard procedures.

Jo, thank you for your co-operation and quick response to my enquiries.

Martin

From: Joanne Harrison

Sent: Tuesday, 26 August 2014 6:46 p.m.
To: Martin Matthews

Subject: RE: Contracting issues

Martin

Both organisations | used and the people within them were personal referrals from other users/staff
members that had experienced the broker services. They were described to me as relatively small
sized firms with vibrant and dynamic staff who delivered a broad range of cost effective services at
speed. The relationship management was excellent; the staff that | dealt with were not mid career
people, rather they were start ups, young, and very keen to deliver above and beyond what was usually
expected, This matched the customer referrals exactly. | am not sure if both have relocated overseas
Martin, | do know that some of the grads were taking their work overseas to continue to build their
experience and client base.

As well as the obvious work you see around the Ministry there was also a range of content design for
literally hundreds of workbooks at each level of our Leadership Development stages 1-4, the full range
of coaching materials 1-3, senior adviser development, graduate induction programmes, assessment
centre materials, food for thought books etc and this was reworked in non branded word/pdf for Stats,
and again for the Transport Sector Shared Services as well as many requests for ad hoc presentation
materials. At the time we had no graduate support and were expected to produce these materials often
‘ate in the piece, again the turnaround time and service was excellent, often within hours not days. | can
provide you with samples of work we still have in storage. We later partnered with o share a
resource to reduce overall costs until the Ministry was in a position to offer a graduate role ourselves.
We did this for 6/7 months and now have orking with us full time, hence no need to continue the
relationship regardless. This did increase the overall payment above and beyond the original plan.

In addition as you will recall there were many sensitive proposals for restructuring being considered,
potentially involving certain MLT members, selected Managers and PAs, FESA, Finance, Legal, as well
as PSA structured documents, and the OD realignment. Staff within the Ministry could not be
reasonably expected to provide this advice and support impartially and also produce reports/products of
quality in the timeframes allowed. Many staff were affected when some of the proposals went through.
At the time | operated in a sole role with no EA or administration support so these confidential services
were essential.

The SD security and surveillance work was instigated after increasing reports of incidents, some going
back 2-3 years. The services provided ranged from initially having someone on site covertly, monitoring
both the building and car park, camera instillation and alerts, telephone monitoring, swipe card entry
analysis and pattern formation including floor activity at the alleged time of the incidents (this took many
hours each time) As the activity and amounts were variable and increasing with each incident it was
difficult to ascertain a predictable pattern. All of this work was done after hours, late evening and over
the weekends. With the potential sensitivity around this work | did confide in |GGG
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time of the start up investigations, | explained to him what was happening, and that it was likely some
invoices could be sent to finance with blacked out parts, just as we do with HR legal advice, to protect
the information. He said he did not need to know any more information and would take care of them
when they required processing.

| understand and appreciate the need for transparency, if you are concerned in any way you could

contact the providers direct and they will confirm no conflict exists and would substantiate the services
they provided. The contact details were — and Mark Sharp via
the website http:/sdservices.wix.com/sdservices or sdservicesuk@amail.com.

My priorities were centred on delivery and pursuing the stretch targets for the Ministry, though this does
not excuse my mistake. | ask that you accept my sincere apologies for the oversight, it will not happen
in future.

Regards
Jo

From: Martin Matthews

Sent: Tuesday, 26 August 2014 12:39 p.m.
To: Joanne Harrison

Subject: RE: Contracting issues

Jo,
Thank you for your quick response to my email.

Much of the design and other work done by these contractors is apparent to me, or | have been aware
that it had been commissioned. | therefore have no reason to doubt or question that the services were
provided to the Ministry, or that the design work was of a high standard. | think it would be helpful
nonetheless if you could provide me a short summary of the key things provided to the Mmlstry from
these providers.

It is of concern to me however that the information provided in relation to both organisations is quite
limited. It is surprising that both are no longer operating in (or likely to be operating) in the Wellington
market. This suggests that they are both firms of limited size or presence in the market. Neither is
known to me other than through reference to the arrangements you have outlined with the Ministry.
This is only significant except insofar as we have an obligation to ensure when committing public funds
hat we are satisfied the counterparty is suitable, and can be relied upon to deliver value for money.
Transparency around these arrangements is also important to demonstrate no personal interest of
conflicts in the decisions we take with public funds. Our procurement and contracting arrangements are
designed to give everyone assurance that this is the case. If my assumptions noted above about these
organisations having a limited presence in the market is correct, it suggests to me that you should have
been even more cautious about ensuring the appropriate procurement and contracting arrangements
were entered into. In the absence of such a process, it would be helpful to me before | decide how to
proceed, if you could provide me with further background on the original basis that led you to select
these firms to provide services to the Ministry, particularly in the case of SD which appears to have
been commissioned to provide a wide array of things.

Thanks
Martin

From: Joanne Harrison
Sent: Monday, 25 August 2014 7:20 p.m.
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To: Martin Matthews
Subject: RE: Contracting issues

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the concerns you and the legal/finance team have raised.

First of all | sincerely apologise, it is my mistake based on genuine misunderstandings around
contracting policy and any related party disclosures. For both [lJand SD there have been a broad
range of services ordered from basic design work to large collateral projects, as well as confidential
documents/security services subcontracted out etc. | charged the invoices to different lines on my
budget, not realising the sum of the parts added up to over $100k in the time period allowed.

SD provided me with marketing brochures that showed a range of services with great service level
agreements; | understand they have been restructuring themselves, which could explain the lack of
web presence. When | have been pressed for quick turnaround on work they have been very good
hence | re-used them. They design a whole range of services to suit the client. The confidential services
and security work has ranged from sensitive document formation around potential restructure
proposals, staff departures and formal legal letters, checks/vetting, investigation and analysis of access
data, instillation/removal of the recent surveillance operation due to ongoing thefts etc. | believe these
functions could not be provided by anyone at the Ministry with absolute confidentiality; | made the call to
use these on an ongoing basis as often this work has involved delivery at weekends and evening work
where | have been present, for obvious reasons | did not want to involve other staff members.

The reason some of the invoices are blacked out is that with the ‘security’ work for example, they listed
names of people that were being looked in to and other information critical to forming a pattern of
events. For potential restructure/performance management issues they showed the names of those of
the teams potentially affected by change. If any of this detail was viewed by staff members, including
finance or legal, some names would have been instantly recognised and | felt obliged to protect this
information. The unforeseen ‘security’ work was not part of the original work plan and meant that the
amount paid increased as the frequency and seriousness of the thefts and telephone abuse escalated.
It is my error Martin; | should have taken stock and sought to get a contract signed at that point.

costs have also overrun, some of this was down to rework, a dispute we had with one of their
pleces of work, and the employment of the joint graduate who the Ministry have now employed on a
short fixed term as it is far more cost effective. We did not anticipate some additional costs such as
purchasing licences, laptops, PDF files etc. My error was that | allocated the graduates costs to
temporary staff workers and did not associate it with the total contract costs from |l We are not
commissioning any more work from SD or both are said to be restructuring and | understand
intending to operate overseas with litle NZ presence.

* fully understand the scrutiny and | accept that | have failed to comply with the paolicy for contracting, for
this | apologise and accept the consequences of any disciplinary action that may arise. This was not
done intentionally.

In future 1 will make sure that_:versees the contracting process on my behalf, countersigns
the invoices, and keeps a running total of all costs.

Regards
Jo.

From: Martin Matthews
Sent: Monday, 25 August 2014 5:33 p.m.
To: Joanne Harrison

Subject: Contracting issues

Jo,

Further to our discussion earlier this afternoon, concerns have been raised with me about payments
you have authorised to Sharp Design and || ] Jllithout contracts in place. You will
appreciate that | am naturally concerned about the non-compliance with our policies and procedures
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for contracting. These exist for very good reasons and need to be complied with.

I understand concerns were raised with you in October last year about compliance with our
contracting policies. At that time | understand you indicated that no further work would be required
of these organisations, and an assurance was given that legal would be informed and contracts
would be put.in place in future. The total amounts paid since then are $88,992 for Sharp-Design
and hThe payments range in size fronww,zzo. This makes the

total payments for 2013/14 to these organisations $123,348 and respectively.

I 'am concerned about the potential repercussions for the Ministry as we are about to be audited and
will shortly be required to answer financial review questions. These processes are likely to uncover
the irregularities. We need to be able to explain them. | am therefore seeking your explanation of
why the requisite procedures have not been followed. Also, as a consequence of limited scrutiny of
these transactions, several issues have been raised with me that also require clarification. | am
therefore also seeking an explanation from you in relation to the following issues;

s The existence of Sharp-Design is in question. It does not have a web presence and is not
listed in the yellow pages

e There’s a name in the organisation which could suggest a personal connection which, if true,
would have implications for the ‘related party disclosures’ required of GMs

e The sort of work carried out by Sharp-Design is unusually diverse, ranging from designing
workshop materials through to ‘risk management’, ‘confidential services’-and security work

¢ Information in some of the invoices for Sharp Design has been ‘twinked out’ so that it is not
possible to see what services have been provided

+ Noone in the legal team was approached to check whether contracts were required.
| would be grateful if you could provide an explanation of these things as well as an indication of how
you will ensure all future procurement you are responsible for will be managed in accordance with
Ministry policy and procedures.
Thank you.

Martin

Martin Matthews
Chief Executive & Secretary for Transport
Ministry of Transport - Te Manatu Waka

Ensuring Our Transport System Helps New Zealand Thrive






From: Mark Sharp <sdservicesuk@gmail.com>

Sent: Sunday, 7 September 2014 10:31 p.m.

To: Lisa Nickson

Subject: Request for information about Sharp Design: Attn Mark Sharp
. Good day to you

I apologise for the delay in getting back to you Ms Nickson, we are currently travelling and have
suffered the frustrations of global roaming as well as being busy busy busy with new incoming work!

I am sorry to hear that the services we have provided in the past have been inconsistent with any
policy you may have. If the Ministry have been dis-satisfied with my products or services I have not
been made aware of any such complaints. Indeed the client feedback we have received whilst in NZ
has been great, if this has not been the case for you or staff at the Ministry please let me know and I
will endeavour to rectify it.

I am happy to furnish you with information regarding SharpDesign6, SharpDesignonline and SD
Services. I am Mark Sharp, business owner, I have a team of 6 skilled professionals and up to 10

‘contract staff when needed. We operated for a little over 2 years in Johnsonville, Lambton Quay/The
Terrace and are set to return late 2015. The aim behind what we do is to provide best quality brokered
services at affordable prices to meet the specific requirements of the clients in various spheres of
business. Our long term strategy is to bestow responsive services to small and medium sized
enterprises globally. Soon we will have small offices in the UK, Spain, Brasil, and NZ/Sydney by
2016.

Why did the Ministry select us - I believe it is the same reason as our other small clients do, we offer
'24/7 operations at our place or yours' as well as quality services brokered through skilled
professionals, quick response, delivery commitments as agreed or your money back! We had limited
visibility in Wellington, we did not need much after my 'refer a friend' scheme took off and that was a
deliberate and ongoing choice of marketing. Naturally this will change when we return in 2015. We
generally take enquiries and source opportunities via web, friend get friend, dribble connections

etc but always prefer to meet up in person, clients respond well to this. Jo seemed to be particularly
impressed with the 7 day operation and the confidential services we provided after a former
colleague of hers recommended us.

I will mail you a package of our promotional information that you may wish to read or file until we
are fully set up on the web again. Jo and her staff all received the WHY US brochures though I am
happy to send them again.

It is such a shame that you feel we did not follow the right process to provide our services, or that a

contract should have been in place each time we delivered a project. My team worked long hours to
ensure superb service 24/7 to Jo and the team at the Ministry. From the feedback received I believed
that our client was very satisfied, it is regrettable that this is not the case. I will attempt to meet with
Jo and I have left a message for her. I will also email her this week and find out what we could have

done differently.
Kind Regards
Mark Sharp BSc BEng(Hons) MSc:

SDServicesUK




On Tuesday, 2 September 2014, Lisa Nickson <Lnickson@transport.govt.nz> wrote:
Dear Mr Sharp

| am the Acting Chief Legal Adviser at the New Zealand Ministry of Transport. I'm hoping you
might be able to help the Ministry with the following query regarding a predecessor to SD
Services UK, Sharp Design.

| understand that Sharp Design provided the Ministry with a range of design and security
services over the 2013/14 financial year without written contracts in place.

Although not appreciated at the time, this was inconsistent with our procurement policy and
unfortunately seems likely to attract the attention of our auditors who may seek further
information about how the services came to be provided.

While we can’t undo the non-compliance, we'd like to ensure we have some material on file
that will, if need be, help us demonstrate to the auditors why we engaged Sharp Design.

To that end, I'd be grateful if you could forward to me a profile of Sharp Design (e.g. covering
off the organisation’s history, services provided, principals, and client base, etc), and any
other promotional material or information that you think might assist.

As the audit of the Ministry is underway, I'd very much appreciate the information by Friday 5
September 2014, if at all possible. (Our Organisational Development GM, Jo Harrison, may
have some of this material on her files but she is away from the office this week).

Apologies for any inconvenience this causes.

Please don't hesitate to call or email me if you would like to discuss.

Kind regards Withheld under section 9(2)(a)

Lisa Nickson
Acting Chief Legal Adviser
Ministry of Transport — Te Manati Waka

MINISTRY OF TRANSPORT

Wellington (Head Office) | 89 The Terrace | PO Box 3175 | Wellington 6140 | NEW ZEALAND | Tel: +64 4 439
9000 | Fax: +64 4 439 9001

Auckland | NZ Government Auckland Policy Office | 45 Queen Street | PO Box 106238 | Auckland City |
Auckland 1143 | NEW ZEALAND | Tel: +64 9 9854827 | Fax: +64 9 9854849

Christchurch | 7 Winston Avenue, Papanui | Christchurch 8140 | NEW ZEALAND | Tel: +64 3 366 9304 | Fax;
+64 3 366 9317

Disclaimer:This email is only intended to be read by the named recipient. It may contain information which is
confidential, proprietary or the subject of legal privilege. If you are not the intended recipient you must delete this
email and may not use any information contained in it. Legal privilege is not waived because you have read this
email.

Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail
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Date: 9 October 2014 OWO ) - ,>< \\B‘ (95,7

| Through: M N K\N (/f’ o /
} \4’3” VD‘“ )i‘f&
Subject: Approval of 2 procurement contracts vo W ~ i~

Following recent discussions | have reviewed my expenditure and whether appropriate
procurement practices have been followed.  yithheld under section 9(2)(b)(ii)

I have engaged Mazarine Associates and-o assist the Ministry with sector
collaboration/shared services work/and projects around improving MLT/TMG leadership. This
started in July and will continue, but its exact end date is dependent on possible movements of

other staff within the shared services functions and the outcomes needed in the leadership
area.

I anticipate the budget for this work is up to $80k for each contract ($160k) and expenditure in
the two months to the end of August has been around $40k.

Under the Procurement Policy for a contract of $50-100k | should have obtained 3 quotes, and
put a contract in place to define the services and price before work started. Neither of these
took place in time and the work needed to be started, | have agreement from the providers to
sign the necessary paperwork to move us forward.

Legal have been provided with drafting instructions and | propose to get the contracts signed to
formalise the arrangements on Tuesday next week

Recommendation

« That you approve in arrears the lack of up front quotes for these contracts and the
contracting arrangements can be agreed and sighed immediately.

e That you also approve a casual contract arrangement for ||| || EGNGzGzG--

behalf of Martin Matthews as we discussed. y
Withheld under section 9(2)(b)(ii)

GM Organisational Development
Withheld under section 9(2)(a)

HEAD OFFICE: PO BOX 3175, Wellington 6740, New Zealand, TEL: +64 4439 9000, FAX: +64 4439 5001

AUCKLAND OFFICE: NZ Govemment Auckland Policy Office, PO Box 106238, Auckland Tity 1142, New Zealand. TEL: +64 $985 4827, FAX: +64 8 985 4845
CHRISTCHURCH OFFICE: PO Box 3014, Christchurch 8140, New Zealand. TEL: +643 366 9304, FAX: +643 3669317
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To: Andrew Jackson  © N \(—a,b@ \ MEMORANDUM
From: Jo Harrison ' />
///
Date: 10 October 2014 g
Through:
L

Subject: Insurance requirements

The Ministry requires its consultants / contractors to hold insurance so that if they do something
that results in financial loss to the Ministry, that loss is covered. The Ministry’s Insurance
Guidelines require contractors to hold minimum cover of $1 million for two types of insurances:

¢ Public liability (third party damage)
+ Professional Indémnity (negligence).

The Guidelines provide for limited circumstances in which the insurance requirements can be
waived, for example.

“where the work being carried out by the confractor consists of compiling a report or
paper from information provided by the Ministry”

This exemption covers the work being undertaken by Mazarine Associates and so | believe that
it is not necessary for them to hold such insurance.

Recommendation

e That you approve the waiver of the insurance requirement.

Regard

Jo Harrison . .
GM Orianisational Development Z\ggl(lh)eld under section
a

HEAD OFFICE: PO 80X 3175, Wellington 6140, New Zeatand. TEL; +64 4 439 9000, FAX: +64 4 439 9001

AUCKLAND OFFICE: NZ Government Auckland Policy Office, PO Box 106 238, Auckland City 1143, New Zealand. TEL: +64 9 5854827, FAX: +645 985 4849
CHRISTCHURCH OFFICE: PO-Box 3014, Christchurch 8140, New Zealand. TEL: +64 3 366 9304, FAX: +64 3 366 9317
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GMG Form 1. SERVICES (2nd Edition)

Contract for Services sike Ministry of Transport
“A TE MANATD WAKA
Organisafional Development Professional Services Support Contract No. 14/15-031

MINISTRY OF TRANSPORT - |  (Buyer)]

Level 6, 89 The Terrace

Weﬂingtqn 6140

and

ELIZABETH WILLIAMS, trading as MAZARINE ASSOCIATES (Supplier)

Agreement

The Buyer appoints the Supplier to deliver the Services described in this Contract and the Supplier
accepts that appointment. This Contract sets out the Parties' rights and obligations.

The documants formmg thls Contract are:

1. This page Page 1
2. Contract Details and Description of Services Schedule 1
3. Standard Temis and Cohditions Schedule 2

GMC Form 1 SERVICES | Schedule 2 (2nd Edition) available at: www.procurement.govt.nz
4, Any other attachments described at Schedule 1.

How to read this Contract
5. Together the above documents form the whole Contract.
6. Any Supplierterms and conditions do not apply.
7. Clause numbers refer to clauses in Schedule 2.

8. Words starting with capital letters have a special meaning. The special méaning is stated in the
Definitions section at clause 17 (Schedule 2)

In signjag this Contract each Party acknowledges that it has read and agrees to be bound by it.

For apd Qn Brghalf of the Buyer: For and on behalf of the Supplier:
{signature) T

name; Jo Harrison name: Elizabeth Williams

' . | General Manager, Organisational __ 1 Director

position: Development position: |

date: 15/10/2014 date: 15/10/2014

1 Te Kawanatanga o Aotearoa NewZealand Governmerit
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GMG Form 1 SERVICES (2nd Edition)

Schedule 1
Contract Details and Description of Services

16 QOctober 2014

31 December 2015

Name: Jo Harrison Elizabeth Williams

Title / position: General Manager, Director, Mazarine Assoclates
Organisational Development

Phone:

Fax:

Email:

For the attention of:

c.c. Contract Manager

Delivery address: 89 The Terrace
' Wellington

Postal address: ‘P QO Box 3175
Wellington 6140

Fax;

Email:

Name: Elizabeth Williams

Position; Director

Specialisation: See website

Services: The Supplier will provide the Buyer with personnel engaged by the Supplier to support the Buyerin
providing advice and carrying out activities associated with developing and implementing shared services across

the government transport sector including, for example, project management, administration support, and event
faciiitation.

The Supplier will also provide administrative and advisory support to the Generai Manager, Organisational
Develapment in carrying her role agsisting the Transport Sector Shared Services [team?] and State Services
Commission on various talent leadership activities and advising on career boards.

The Parties acknowledge that, despite clause 1.1 of Schedule 2 to this contract, the Supplier has since 1 July
2014 delivered some of the described Services.

Deliverables: The Supplier will:
» Prepare a final report on the Talent Discovery workshop
»  Prepare reports, recommendations, and analyses related to assessment benchmarking and talent
leadership activities
Carry out productivity and globalisation talent analyses and shared support work.
Prepare other reports as and when agreed in writing batween the Buyer and Supplier
Support TSSS via GM where/when appropriate with individual reports/analysis
Project support inclusing admin for TSSS from June 2015 (potentially full time until December 2015)

* & ¢
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Performance Standards

The Services ara to be delivered to the required performance standards or quality reasonably notified by the Buyer
to the Supplier from time 1o time.

Milestones

The Services are to be delivered in aceordance with the milestones and applicable dates, as agreed in writing
between the Buyer and the Supplier.

Contract Manager | Oral updates'

'Progress reporis

ourly Fee Rate

|

or each hohr worked an Hourly Fee Rate of $110.00 excluding GST, upto a total
maximum of $80,000,00 excluding GST in 2014,

Anticipated for 2015 ~ up to maximum $95000.00 excluding G§} b\ui r’ ahcx Rm’ ZC

If the Supplier reaches the total maximum without completing the Services, the Supplieris

required to complete the Services without further payment, unless otherwise agreed in
writing.

3

-

The Parties acknowledge that, despite clause 1.1 of Schedule 2 to this contract, the ;
Supplier has since 1 July 2014 delivered some of the described Services and that this
wark is to be'included in determining the total maximum fee.

No Expenses are payable.

&

The Supplier must send the Buyar an‘invoice for the Charges at the following times: :
1 At the end of the'month, for Services delivered during that month.

.| Forthe attention of: Jo Harrison

Physical address: Level 6, 89 The Terrace, Wellington
Postal address: P-O Box 3175, Wellington 6140

Email; accounts@transpomgow,nz

INSURANCE: (clause 8.1 Schedule 2)

Itis the Supplier's responsibility to.ensure its risks of doing business are adequately
covered, whether by insurance or otherwise. The Buyer does not require any specific
insurance tnder this Contract.

Te Kawanatanga o Aotearoa NewZealand Government
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SCHEDULE 2 of this Contract is amended as follows:
Section 2: Add the following clause ~

“2.8 If the Supplier comprises more than one parly, then each shall be jointly and
severally liable for the Supplier's obligations under this Contract.”

Section 6: Add the following clause ~

“6.4 This Contract does not confer any legal rights on anyone except the Parties.”
Section 9: Add the following clauses —

‘9.4 During the term of this Contract and for a period of six months after completing
the Services, the Supplier must not, and must ensure that its Personnel do not,
undertake any work for any other person that is, or may be, in the Buyer's

reasonaple opinion, a Conflict of Interest, except with the Buyer's prior written
consent.”

Section 11:

Clause 11.2: Delete the word “Contact” in line 2, and substitute the word “Contract”.
Clause 11.5: Delete subclause f., and substitute the following subclause ~

“f.  isrequired by the Buyer, acting reasonably, to supply the Services within the
period of an Extracrdinary Event

Clause 11.5: Add the following subclause —

‘L. undergoss a change of Control and the Buyer notifies the Supplier in writing that
the person to whom Control has passed is not acceptable to the Buyer or that
the change of Control will have a material adverse effect on the Supplier's ability
{o provids the Services”

Section 13: Add the following clauses -

“13.3  Wf requested by the Buyer, the Supplier will ensure that its Personnel sign a
confidentiality undertaking in the form attached in favour of the Buyer.

“Official Infonmation

"13.4  The Supplier acknowledges that the Buyer is subject to the Official Information
Act 1882 and that it may be obliged to disclose Confidential Information under
that Act. The Buyer shall promptly advise the Supplier of any request received
by it under the Official Information Act that relates to the Supplier’s Cornfidential
Information and prior to any disclosure under the request.”

Section 15:
Clause 15.3: Delete and substitute the following clause —

“153  The Buyer may, after consulting with the Supplier, make alternative
arrangements to ensure performance of the Services during the period affected
by ihe Extraordinary Event, including engaging altemative suppliers. fthe
Buyer makes alternative arrangements; it doeés so at its own cost.”

Add the following clauses —

"155 A parly shall not be required against its will to settle any strike, fock-out or other
industrial disturbance.

“15.6  Performance of any obligation affected by an Extraordinary Event shall be

resumed as soon as reasonably practicable after the Extraordinary Event has
ended or abated.”

Section 16: Add the following clause —

“16.11  If a provision of this Contract is held to be invalid, the Contract remains in full
force apart from that provision.”

Section 17: Add the following definition after Contract Manager:

"Control In relation to the Supplier, the power to:

a. hold more than 50% of the voting securities, or to exercise or control the
exercise of more than 50% of the maximum number of votes than can be voted
at a meeling of shareholders; or

b. control, directly or indirectly, the composition of the board of directors or board
of management of the Supplier, whether through the ownership of voting
securities, by contract or otherwise.”

Te Kawanatanga o Aotearoa NewZealand Government
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From: Lisa Nickson [ IEGTGNGNGNGNGNGEGEEEEEEEE
Sent: Tuesday, 21 October 2014 10:46 a.m.

To: Joanne Harrison

Cc: Martin Matthews

Subject: Sharp Design procurement

Hi Jo

Before our meeting, | thought you might appreciate it if | set out what the ongoing problem is here, and
what we need to do to sort it out. | realise some of this stuff can seem pretty arcane to people.

I got the material Mark Sharp provided, so thanks for passing that on.

Unfortunately, this isn't going to be enough to cover off issues that may be raised about the
procurement of the services provided. I'm thinking here particularly of potential select committee
questioning.

Things can get pretty intense in that environment, and we need to make sure Martin doesn'tend up in a
position where he’s unable to show the committee that what was done was appropriate.

td go a long way toward managing this, if we're able to provide a fulsome paper trail that details why
we selected Sharp Design, and that shows what they did.

S0, | need you to help me build up a file by providing the following:
e a set of Sharp Design’s invoices (with no redactions)

o examples of the work they did (I think they did some workbooks for us? So that could be one
example)

+ afile note explaining specifically when and how you came to be aware of Sharp Design (This
might include, for example, some details around the staff referrals you mentioned a while back),
and the information that caused you to believe Sharp Design were suitable to do the work

We also need proper profile information about Sharp Design. | think it'd be best if you followed up with
Mark on this (I think he may have got the wrong end of the stick and become concerned that | am
questioning the quality of the work, which isn’t my intention). What | mean by ‘profile’ is information
covering off Sharp Design’s history, services provided, principals, and client base, etc.

Talk to you soon.

Lisa Nickson
Acting Chief Legal Adviser
Ministry of Transport — Te Manata Waka






From: Joanne Harrison

Sent: Tuesday, 21 October 2014 12:39 p.m. Withheld under section
To: Martin Matthews 9(2)(a)

Subject: procurement

Hi Martin
| have met with Lisa before | saw this email.

| provided her with a copy of the first part of the email exchange between the two of us that stated you
were satisfied with how these people were selected and that no further action was needed. | don't
intend to go over that again or respond to her email.

I have also provided her with sample emails showing work out of hours, some products, concepts, and
a high level example of entry analysis etc. | explained to her the sensitivity around some of the work
that had been delivered, why the blacked out emails would remain that way, and tha

had been briefed about this prior. She asked questions around why we did not seek a legal
opinion from them or someone on the Government panel around actions regarding the thefts; |
informed her that we did verbally, nothing illegal took place, and that in fact we had managed to stop
the thefts etc.

| am concerned that this is not being closed down; in particular the sensitive operation that MLT were
verbally briefed on. | think the information | have provided is sufficient for her to hold on file and should
the scenario happen that she refers to (that you may be questioned heavily at select committee) then
we will deal with it then. Lisa became agitated when | explained to her that | would protect some
information about the work that has been delivered as it disclosed staff details etc, she informed me she
is the privacy officer and has a right to know these things, she also stated she has the right to ask
privacy questions and she would continue to do so

I do not intend going back to her by email as | believe she now has enough physical information, | do
think she will keep coming back if she is allowed to do so and | would appreciate your help in closing
this down. | will certainly not provide her with information about the investigation as | have real
concerns around confidentiality and her PSA status/history; the concerns extend to the whole legal
team and not just Lisa.

Regards
Jo

from: Lisa Nickson

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

| got the material Mark Sharp provided, so thanks for passing that on.

Unfortunately, this isn't going to be enough to cover off issues that may be raised about the
procurement of the services provided. I'm thinking here particularly of potential select committee
questioning.

Things can get pretty intense in that environment, and we need to make sure Martin doesn't end up in a
position where he's unable to show the committee that what was done was appropriate.
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Itd go a long way toward managing this, if we're able to provide a fulsome paper trail that details why
we selected Sharp Design, and that shows what they did.

So, | need you to help me build up a file by providing the following:
o aset of Sharp Design’s invoices (with no redactions)

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

~ questioning the quality of the work, which isn’t my intention). What | mean by ‘profile’ is information
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

Sent: Wednesday, 22 October 2014 8:55 a.m.
To* Lisa Nickson

Subject: RE; Big Thanks

Thanks Lisa,

I'm learning something new about this every day; | will be the first one to attend the training along with my
team leaders!

From: Lisa Nickson

Sent: Wednesday, 22 October 2014 8:53 a.m.
To: Joanne Harrison

Cc: Flona Macmaster

Subject: RE: Big Thanks

Ok thanks Jo. Just for future reference, once a manager is happy with the content of a contract, it is legal who
finalises the document and ensures everything is in order for signing.

Also, we hold onto the original signed contract so if you could ensure 1t's forwarded to us, that'd be great

Once everyone is back on deck in the legal team, | expect we'll be arranging some training on contracting and
procurement to help people understand the Ministry's processes and procedures so watch this space!

Cheers

Lisa Nickson
Acting Chief Legal Adviser
Ministry of Transport — Te Manati Waka

----0Original Message-----

From: Joanne Harrison

Sent: Tuesday, 21 October 2014 5:34 p.m
To: Lisa Nickson

Cc: Fiona Macmaster

Subject: RE: Big Thanks

| did clarify the deliverables, and have got things signed up now, thanks Lisa.

----- Original Message-----

From: Lisa Nickson

Sent; Tuesday, 21 October 2014 4:45 p.m.
To: Joanne Harrison

Cc: Fiona Macmaster

Subject: RE: Big Thanks

HiJo

Were you able to confirm the deliverables with the supplier last week? Once that has been clarified, | can



Withheld under section
finalise the contract for you. 9(2)(a)

Lisa Nickson
Acting Chief Legal Adviser
Ministry of Transport — Te Manatl Waka

----- Original Message-----

From: Joanne Harrison

Sent: Tuesday, 14 October 2014 4:52 p.m.
To: Lisa Nickson

Cc* Fiona Macmaster

Subject: RE: Big Thanks

Super stuff! Many thanks indeed.

dave a good evening Lisa.

From: Lisa Nickson

Sent: Tuesday, 14 October 2014 4:45 p.m.
To: Joanne Harrison

Cc: Fiona Macmaster

Subject: RE: Big Thanks

Hilo
Here is the latest draft for you to look over.

In terms of the content, there are just the deliverables to be finalised. In the meantime, I've had a go at
clarifying what's intended there.

‘nce you have confirmed them with the supplier, the appropriate adjustments to the deliverables can be
made and the contract can then be finalised for signing.

If you're meeting the supplier on Thursday, this may mean the start date will need to be the next day. Hence
why | have put '16 October 2014’ in square brackets.

Lisa

Lisa Nickson
Acting Chief Legal Adviser
Ministry of Transport — Te Manat Waka

-----Original Message-----
From: Joanne Harrison
Sent: Tuesday, 14 October 2014 3:00 p.m.



To: Lisa Nickson
Subject: Big Thanks

Many thanks again Lisa!






¥
*

r
‘(
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TE MANATU WAKA

% § Ministry of Transport

5 RN\
M A / \q’\
To: Andrew Jackson (Acting (iE)u T MEMORANDUM
From: Jo Harrison
Date: 12 November 2014

Subject: Contract to exceed criginal estimate of $90K

We signed a contract with Elizabeth Williams (of Mazarine Associates) in July. This supplier
was contracted initially to provide assessment benchmarking, the talent discovery workshop,

7 productivity and globalisation {alent analysis as well as support for the work with the Transport
Sector Shared Services across a range of disciplines, including assisting with sector wide
L training and development following unplanned staff departures from NZTA.

In the current contract under fees’ | had written an anticipated $90K for 2014/15 and a further
$95K from June 2015 onwards, this was to cover the senior co-ordinator departure under an
anticipated redundancy clause in May/June 2015 and to ensure we had continuity of support
rather than stop/start at a critical time. We are well underway with the Learning Management
System (LMS) now and last month purchased our own license to begin writing modules to frial
at the Ministry. This supplier will assist with design and implementation.

We will need to pay fees that are more than anticipated in year one if we are to keep
momentum going with this work. We have delivered some work far quicker than anticipated, |
have now assigned to assist, | was informed yesterday that the redundancy of the
NZTA employee may happen sooner. It seems sensible for continuity of delivery to retain
Elizabeth’s services, and although for 2014/15 this will exceed $100k it will balance out for the

remainder of late 2015. If anything changes at that time then we will apply the Gets process for
T 2015/2016.

e’

e

o

Recommendation

That you approve the contract to exceed $90k (on an exceptional basis) and in 2015/16 we will
apply the Gets process if necessary at that time.

gards

Jo Harrison

GM Orianisational Development

HEAD OFFICE: PO BOX 3175, Wellington 6140, New Zealand. TEL: +64 4439 9000, FAX: +64.4 439 9001

AUCKLAND OFFICE: NZ Government Auckland Policy Office; PO Box 106 238, Auckland City 1143, New Zealand, TEL: +64 9985 4827, FAX: +64 9985 4849
CHRISTCHURCH OFFICE: PO Box 3014, Christchurch 8140, New Zedland. TEL: +64 3 366 9304, FAX: +64 33669317
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Joanne Harrison —

Subject: " opies

Attachments: img-Y14085754-0001.pdf

Good afternoon Elizabeth,

Further to our conversation I can confirm the DCE has given the authority to continue the contract
arrangement for 2014, noting it is an exceptional one off situation regarding the usual GETS process.
For 2015/16 if we anticipate the costs will exceed $100k I will need you to follow the GETS process.

He has approved it to provide continuity of service, and was impressed that the delivery target had
been achieved many weeks ahead of schedule. Well done and thank you!

I look forward to seeing you at our project meeting on Tuesday.

%—;Elave a good weekend.

- Regards i
Jo Harrison |

General Manager - Organisational Development
Ministry of Transport - Te Manatii Waka

Ensuring our transport system helps New Zealand thrive

(A

{

T







From: Martin Matthews

Sent: Tuesday, 16 December 2014 12:42 p.m.

To: Lisa Nickson

Subject: RE: Information regarding Sharp Design's services

Thanks Lisa,

This is a difficult one. | would have preferred a higher level of transparency to remove
any doubt or suspicion about the services procured. | have spoken with Jo about this
and she has apologised for the non-compliance, assured me of her future compliance,
and explained to me her reasons for the secrecy.

| have decided to not pursue this matter further on the following grounds;

e My primary concern has been in relation to non compliance with our
procurement policy. Nothing can change this matter of fact. | have spoken with
Jo several times with regard to the importance of compliance with these
requirements, and to remind her of the higher standards expected because we
are dealing with public money. Jo assures me that she now has arrangements
in place to manage future procurement consistent with these expectations.

s The absence of documentation has led to questions about the exact nature of
the services provided. | understand the services related to a mix of design,
publication and security related advice. In relation to the latter, some secrecy
has been maintained to protect the ‘covert’ nature of attempts to determine who
may have been responsible for the theft of private property on the Ministry’s
premises. | have no information to cause me to question whether the services
were provided. Naturally, if | did have such information | would treat it with
deep concern and seriousness. To act without good cause however would
have equally serious implications for the perceived trust and confidence | have
in one of my senior managers. As you will appreciate, as a good employer, |
would be reluctant to accuse anyone of impropriety without reasonable
evidence.

It does concern me however that this situation was able to arise. Clearly, first and
foremost, the responsibility sits with Jo for not following proper process. However,
despite the auditors being satisfied with our system of internal controls for finance, | am
concerned that payments could be approved and paid without the Ministry first being
assured that appropriate arrangements are in place, and there is certification from
someone other than the person approving the payment that the services have been
rendered. This is something | will separately raise with Fiona.

| am obviously happy that you take the necessary steps to close this out.



Thank you.

Martin

From: Lisa Nickson

Sent: Thursday, 11 December 2014 12:50 p.m.

To: Martin Matthews

Subject: Information regarding Sharp Design's services

Hi Martin
| need to report back to you on this. As instructed, | asked Jo for information related to
the engagement of Sharp Design’s services over 2013/14. | also met with Jo, at her

invitation.

Here’s what | asked for and what | received:

Information sought (see Information provided by Jo
attached email of 21/10/14)
o A set of Sharp Design’s * None; Jo doesn’t have these

invoices with no redactions
¢ A file note explaining when | e None
and how Jo came to be
aware of Sharp Design, and
the information that caused
her to believe Sharp Design
were suitable to do the work

e  Proper profile information s None
about Sharp Design
o Examples of the work ¢ Twelve hard copy documents: various
Sharp Design did professional development/leadership
workbooks, an A3 table of post-PIF action
planning, a package of 2 reports from Withheld
on security card access to |, der section
Ministry premises, a diagram on Sharp 0(2) (b)(ii)

Design-branded note paper depicting the
Ministry’s floor layout with markings indicating
placement of equipment, a glossy A3 GIC
poster.

e Ten email strings from 27/1/2014 to 31/5/2014 Withheld
i under
predominantly between Jo and section 9(2)

They appear to relate to a style guide,
coaching/workbooks, security work, and ()
reception area re-design.

The examples of work are not all that helpful:

o it is difficult to tell what role Sharp Design had in producing the hard copy
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documents, except the diagram

+ five of the hard copy documents do not relate to the 2013/2014 period, a sixth
appears to have been produced bm, and a seventh byF
(according to [JJJj invoices, they did the “Imagery refresh - GIC Posters

¢ the email strings contain minimal detail (one has no date, no sender or recipient, no
text, no attachment, just a subject line)

¢ three of the 10 email strings appear to relate to work done by others - the
reports, a website order to , and the re-design of the reception
area. was paid for reception signage).

| tried to match the documents and emails to the $123,347 in payments made to Sharp
Design in 2013/2014. | wasn’t overly successful because we only have very high level
descriptions of the services provided.

So, in the event you are asked for examples of Sharp Design’s work paid for over the
2013/14 period, you may need to call on Jo to clarify. (Jo wasn'’t overly comfortable
giving me all relevant information she had, due to its confidential nature. | advised her
that in principle a Chief Legal Adviser should be able to look at what they want to but
would have a look at what she’d provided and get back to her if we needed more. |
haven't followed up on that)

| should mention that Jo told me she’d obtained legal advice from a security company |
about the cameras. | gather this is reflected in one of the invoices for Sharp Design.
However, later in the conversation, Jo also indicated that_ gave her
legal advice that it was ok. | said | wanted to see the advice but haven’t heard anything
more. I've told David about this, and would support the legal team having a role in
overseeing the procurement of all legal advice obtained by the Ministry.

| understand from David that you are satisfied the action taken in relation to this breach
of Ministry policy has been sufficient and do not wish to pursue the matter further.

If that is the case, then the next step is for me to inform the person who made the
disclosure of the outcome, as required by Ministry policy.

Lisa Nickson
Principal Solicitor Withheld under section 9(2)(a) i
Ministry of Transport — Te Manati Waka ;

|
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Date 1 duly 2015

Ministry”).  Your offer of employment is on the terms contained in this letter and the

I'am pleased to offer you fixed-term employment with the Ministry of Transport (“the /
Ministry’s collective agreement.

Position® WA

Location: Wellington
™S e [
Employment Fixed-term Qﬁgb“&‘g b ‘b H’d 1S
Category: .
=/ A4 & \ndg
Fixed Term: 28 July to 20 December 2015 . :

v BKeck Q&)
Holiday Pay: Four weeks (pro rata)

Ordinary hours /37 hours per week =
of work:

Total v _(pro rata for period worked) — the

Remuneration: Ministry's employer contributions to your superannuation (if any)
are paid as part of your total remuneration, rather than in addition
to it. This means that;

»  if youare a member of KiwiSaver, this sum is inclusive of any
compulsory employer contribution that the Ministry is required
iy to make to your KiwiSaver under the KiwiSaver Act 2006; or

» if you are'a member of SSRSS, this sum is inclusive of the
Ministry’s agreed employer contribution to SSRSS.

Your remuneration will be paid fortnightly by direct credit into your
nominated bank account,

KiwiSaver All new staff are automatically enrolled in KiwiSaver at the rate of
~3%. Contributions will continue to be deducted each payday
unless you opt out. You have eight weeks after commencement of *
employment to decide if you wish to remain a member of
KiwiSaver.

This agreement may be terminated by either party giving four week’s notice in
writing, with payment of salary for work carried out by the employee being paid up to
the date of termination only, unless otherwise required by law. The employer may
elect to pay the employee the equivalent part, or all, of his ordinary base salary in lieu

' swww.transport.govt.nz

HEAD OFFICE: PO Bok 3175, Wellington 6140, New Zealand. TEL; +64'4 435 9000, FAX: -64 4.439 5001
AUCKLAND OEFICE: The New Zealand Government - Auckland Policy Office, PO Box 106 238, Auckland City 1143, New Zedland. TEL: +64 9 985 4827, FAX: #8649 985 4349
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of notice for any part of that notice period and not require the employee to attend
work during that time.

This position is covered by a collective employment agreement between the Ministry
and the Public Service Association (PSA).

Members of the PSA are automatically bound by the terms of the collective
agreement between the Ministry and the PSA. Please advise People and
Development if you are a member of the PSA. You may choose to become a
member of the PSA at any time, in which case you will then be bound by the
collective agreement between that union and the Ministry.

If you are ‘bound by the collective agreement, additional terms and conditions may be
agreed between you and the Ministry that are not inconsistent with the collective
agreement.

If you are not a member of the PSA, for the first 30 days of your employment with the
Ministry, you will be employed under an individual employment agreement based on
the same terms and conditions as contained in the collective agreement plus any
additional terms agreed between you and the Ministry that are not inconsistent with
the collective agreement. This is required under the Employment Relations Act
2000. You have already been provided with a copy of the collective agreement.

After 30 days, if you are not a member of the PSA your individual employment
agreement can be varied by mutual agreement befween you and the Ministry. If no
variations are made, your ferms and conditions will continue unaltered.

Entire Agreement

The offer of employment as contained in this letter and the enclosed collective
agreement is a full record of the agreement between you and the Ministry of
Transport and supersedes any previous agreements or discussions. Any changes to
any of these terms will need to be agreed in writing.

Acceptance of Offer

Please take your time to consider this offer. You are entitled to seek independent
advice regarding these terms. Should you wish to discuss any aspect of this offer,
please do not hesitate to contact Joanne Harrison on ﬂ

If you wish to accept this offer, please sign the following section and declaration on
the enclosed copy of this letter and return it to* in our People &

Business Support Team within 10 days of receipt of this letter (at which time the offer
will lapse). You may be required to undergo police and/or security vetting for this
position. Should this be required and you fail to successfully obtain appropriate
checks, your employment may be terminated.

On behalf of the Ministry, | extend to you a sincere welcome and trust that we will
have a mutually rewarding relationship.
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Yours sincerely

Andrew Jackson
Acting Chief Executive

Acceptance of Offer

!-acknowledge that | have read, understood and accept the conditions of
this offer of employment and the terms contained in the enclosed employment
agreement,

I'acknowledge that | have had the opportunity to take independent advice prior to
accepting this offer. | also declare that all information | have provided to the Ministry
in support of my application for employment is true, correct and complete, 1
understand that this information is material to the Ministry’s decision to employ me

and that I may be dismissed if | have provided any untrue, incorrect or incomplete
information,

| eensent / do not consent to the Public Service Association being informed
that | have entered into this agreement.

I have received a copy of the State Services Code of Conduct and agree to abide by
it.

- 7-15

Date

NOTE: Please return one original letter. Keep a copy for your records.
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From e

Sent: 7 October 2ii 51312

To:
Subject: ROI Response for Organisational Development Transition and Technology Services
Attachments: MOT- ROI Response Oct2015.pdf

Please find attached a completed ROI Response form for OD Transitional and Technology Services.

ConNe C—F Withheld under section 9(2)(b)(ii)
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Registration
Response Form

In response to the call for Registrations of Interest
by: Ministry of Transport

for: Organisational Development Transition and Technology Services

Date of this Registration: 11 September 2015

Respondent, which means ‘e persan, organisation, business or other entity that

submits a Registration in response to the ROI, The term Respondent includes its
Supplier  officers, employees, contractors, consultants, agents and representatives. The term
tips Respondent differs from a supplier, which is any other business In the market place

that does not submit ¢ Registration’. Definitions areat the end of ROl Section 6.

' ® Words and phrases that have a special meaning are shown by the use of capitals e.g.
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2,

1. About the Respondent

« The section gives the Buyer basic information about your organisation and
® identifies your Point of Contact for the duration of the RO process.

» + Ifan item is not applicable e.g. you do not have a registered office, complete the
Supplier hox by stating ‘not applicable’.
tips if you are submitting a joint or consortium Registration complete an ‘Our profile’
table for each Respondent. Cut and paste the table as appropriate. Provide only

one Point of Contact for your joint/consortium Registration,

Our profile
Choose one of these statements to complete, and delete the others

This is a Registration of interest by Elizabeth Williams (the Respondent) alone to supply the
Requirements.

" Detail

| Elizabeth Williams
nfa

n/a

sole trader

nfa

New Zealand

Qur Point of Contact

T

Citem : . - Detail

Liz Williams

Principal Advisor

2. Response to the Requirements

Pagedof 9



« n this section you are-asked to provide your response 1o our Requirements (RO!
Section 2) by demonstrating your organisation’s ability to meet our conditions
and criteria {ROI Section 3: Our Evaluation Approach). Carefully read ROI Sections

Supplier 2 and 3 before completing this part.

tips « If there is anything that you.do not understand ask our Point of Contact to clarify.

+ Ifany information you provide is commercially sensitive to your organisation you
must let the Buyer know. Please mark the information ‘commercially sensitive’ or
‘Confidential Information’”. it is not acceptable to render this whole document
confidential unless this is trly the case, The Buyer has a duty to protect
Confidential Information subject to the exceptions in the ROI-Terms (Section 6),

« If saome of an answer is In another document ¢.g. a marketing brochure, copy and
paste the relevant extract into this Registration. Do not submit the whole
brochure, Please do notinclude any advertising brochures or similar material in
your Registration.

« You may include information not specifically requested by us in your Registration.
But only if it adds value and is relevant to our Requirements.

Pre-conditions

« You must be able td answer 'yes’ to the pre-condition{s}). Make sure you are able
to.verify that this is the case, if asked,

Y . ‘Yes’ means that you can currently meet the pre-condition. it does not mean that
Supplier you are planning to, or intend to at some time in the future,

tips If you cannot answert ‘yes’ to the pre-condition({s}, your Registration will not meet
the basic Requirements and will he declined.

Pre-candition

There are no pre-tonditions applying to this Registration of Interest N/A

Overview of our solution

We ask that applications set out relevant experience, skills and qualifications for the role. We do not
require applications to describe a project methodology or'to provide @ proposed projéct plan. The
project team has developed a working project plan, which will he discussed and reviewed with the
incoming Project Director,

Questions relating to the evaluation criteria

Registration will be scored against your answers to these critetia. Aim to give
answers that are relevant, concise and comprehensive,

Supplier . Consider the % weighting for each criterion. The higher the weighting the more

@ » Here you are asked to ariswet questions relating to the evaluation criteria. Your

Page5of 9
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tips important itis. Take the weightings into account in decidifng how much detall to
Include.

+ If you have made any assumption about the Requirements or delivery, clearly
state the assumption.

« There may be several questions that relate to one criterion. if these questions are
not individually weighted assume that they are of equal importance.

Applicants niay not need 1o have experience in ALL facets of this ROJ - those
applicants with capability in some areas but not all, can still express interest

1. Applicanf will be highly experienced in programme planning High
and programme management

[ have worked at various public sector entities, 3nciuding/M9;t,.Transport Sector, MBIE, ACC, MoH
and highly experienced in planning and PMO duties.

/&?e’ a proven history providing cost effective programme management with a commitment for i
A est in class’ service. | pride myself on being a one-stop consultant/Contractor, coherent ‘
programme designer with efficient off site operations,

2. Applicant will bave experience in, and knowledge of, the High
transport sector, and the business drivers and culture of the
Ministry of Transport in particular

Working with two consultancy businesses, | have a good knowledge of the transport sector, and
working at the Ministry of Transport in particular. Many years ago | led change management
projects, and more recently have assisted with the current organisational development delivery. |
am aware of the challenges and opportunities at the Ministry, | have conducted analysis on the
entire project management approaches of the OD portfolio and delivered solutions to the previous
and current OD General Manager.

3. Apbﬁcant will have experience in business transformation High
and change management

The focus of my delivery over the last ten years has centred on change leadership. On a daily basis |
develop roadmaps, technologies, systems and evidence based practices that help produce the end
results. 1teach change leadership for project managers, design and deliver training (LMS/EMS)
materials as well as assisting GMs/CEQ’s to apply a change centric approach,

4. Applicant will have experience in collateral development — - Medium
digital and print

1 prefer to outsource additional collateral development, particularly if clients want system structure
and layout advice. 1 find it is more efficient and cost effective, | build the anticipated costs into
guotes provided. | have experience developing basic visual design, have delivered campaigns and,
product landing pages, marketing materials,

Page6of9
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5. Applicant will have experience in communications planning Medium

| bring extensive experience in communication, planning and delivery across the transport sector.
Personally | am known for highly effective communications {oral and written) and being an
accomplished relationship manager at a senior level.

| believe communications has a huge impact on the way change leadership and general
organisational development is delivered. We are all in the relationship business and communication
is the glue thatholds it all together}

6. Applicant will have experience in technological change High
implementation Inciuding iraining & development

@g and development is a key deliverable | have achieved over recent years at the Ministry of
ansport; technological change, Iewnd development is fundamental to business
growth, creating more efficient production methods all round. | draw up training plans, materials,

policy and work up training options on line and via class room format; with in house training
options. | delivered striving for excellence which was utilised across the transport sector.

/)
} Assumptions

Please state any assumptions that you have made in relation to the Requirements.
None
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3. Our

declaration

9 -

Supplier
Tips

Here you are must answer questions in making a formal declaration.

Remember to select ‘agree’ or ‘disagree’ at the end of each row. If you don’t you
will be deemed to have agreed.

Remember to get the declaration signed by someone who is authorised to sign
and ahle to verify each of the elements of the declaration e.g. chief executive or
a senior manager.

if you are submitting a joint or consortium Registration each Respondent
{supplier involved in the joint bid or consortium) must complete a separate
declaration.

Respondent’s declaration

RO! Process, Terms
and Conditions: the RO! Process, Terms and Conditions (shortened to

I/we have read and fully understarnd the ROI, including

ROLTerms detailed in Section 4, as amended by
Section 1, paragraph 1.6. if applicable). I/we confirm
that Respondent/s agree to be bound by them.

Collection of further  The Respondent/s authorises the Buyer to: agree

information:

a. collect any information about the Respondent,
except commercially sensitive pricing
information, from any relevant third party,
including a referee, or previous or existing client

b. use such information in the evaluation of this
Registration.

The Respondent/s agrees that all such information will
he confidential to the Buyer, '

Requirements:

I/we have read and fully understand the nature and agree
extent of the Buyer's Requirements as described in

Section 2. I/we confirm that the Respondent/s has the

necassary capacity and capability to fully meet or

exceed the Requirements and will be available to

deliver throughout the relevant Contract period.

Ethics:

In submitting this Registration the Respondent/s agree
warrants that it;

a. has not entered into any improper, illegal,
collusive or anti-competitive:arrangements with
any Competitor

b. has not directly or indirectly approached any

Page8of 9
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representative of the Buyer (other than the Point
of Contact) to lobhy or solicit information in
relation to the RO}

¢. has not attempted to influence, or provide any
form of personal inducement, reward or benefit
fo any representative of the Buyer.

Conflict of Interest The Respondent warrants that it has no actual, agree
declaration: potential or perceived Conflict of interest in

submitting this Registration, or entering intca

Contract to deliver the Requirements, Where a |

Conflict of Interest arises during the procurement

process the Respondent wilf report it immediately to

the Buyer's Point of Contact.

Details of Conflict of Interest: ‘not applicable’.

DECLARATION
I/we declare that in submitting the Registration and this declaration:

a. the information provided is true, accurate and complete and not misleading in any material
fespect

b. the Registration does not contain Intellectual Prégerty that will breach a third party’s rights

c. I/we have secured all appropriate authorisations to submit this Registration, to make the
statements and to provide the information in the Registration and Ijwe am/are not aware of any
impediments to enter into a Contract to deliver the Requirements.

I/we understand that the falsification of information, supplying misleading information or the
suppression of material information in this declaration and the Registration may result in the
Registration being eliminated from further participation in the ROI pracess and may be grounds for
termination of any Contract awarded as a result of the ROI.

By signing this declaration the signatory below represents, warrants and agrees that he/she has been
authorised by the Respondent/s to make this declaration on its/their behalf.

Signature!

Full name: -
ELizagery niies ao §

Zin wpal Adviter

Title / position:

Name of
organisatiom

EUZA’}??&T:(-/ Wttty S CoanSuctarg
Date: gd - lo- 1S

Page9of 9
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OD Transitional Services ROl - October 2015 —
Response Evaluation
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GMC Form 1 SERVICES (2nd Edition)

Withheld under section 9(2)(a)

Contract for Services

%‘l{ Ministry of Transport

TE MANATU WAKA

Transition and change/project support

Contract No.1 5[1 6-013

MINISTRY OF TRANSPORT

Level 6,' 89 They Terrace

Wellington 6140

homm—

and

Elizabeth Willlams

éST;ﬁegistratioh / Company No:

R R

Agreement

The Buyer appoints the Supplier to deliver the Services described in this Contract and the Supplier
accepts that appointrrient. This Contract sets out the Parties’ rights and obligations.

The documents forming this Contract are:
1. This page

3. Standard Terms and Conditions

2. Contract Details and Description of Services

Page 1
Schedule 1
Schedule 2

GMC Form 1 SERVICES | Schedule 2 (2nd Edition) available at: www.procurement.qovt.nz

4. Any other attachments described at Schedule 1.

How to read this Contract

5. Together the abové documents form the whole Contract,
6. ‘Any Supplier terms and conditions do not apply.
7. Clause numbers refer to clauses in Schedule 2.

8. Words starting with capital letters have a special meaning. The special meaning is stated in the
Definitions section at clause 17 (Schedule 2).

In signing this Contract each Party acknowledges that it has read and grees to be bound by it

For and onp’éﬁ%}?of the Buyer:

For and on behalf of the Supplier:

/ i
;i :L‘_,\
(signature) \/ ’ (signature
name: Joanne Harrison name: Liz Williams
, . | General Manager Organisational ;. | Contractor
position: Development position:
date: 9/10/2015 date: 1o / ™ ! Y aiS
1

Te Kawanatanga o Aotearoa

New Zealand Government
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Schedule 1
Contract Details and Description of Services

2 November 2015

ongoing

SR SR

Name:

&=

Joanne Harrison Liz Williams

1 Title / poéﬁion:

Phone:

General Manager Contractor

Organisational Development

For the attention of: Joanne Harrison

©.c. Contract Manager

Dellvery address: 89 The Terrace
Wellington

Postal address:

P O Box 3175
Wellington 6140

Name:

Liz Williams

Position:

Sole Contractor

Specialisation:

N/A

Services and Deliverables

[0}
o Internal communications

o Extemal communications
[o]

Services are summarised below and will be subject to mutually agreed briefs throughout the engagement.

The supplier will pravide advisory and administrative support to General Manager Joanne Harrison throughout the
change period. The summary of delivery will change from time to {ime and flexibility will be required.

s New and existing Chief Executive transition:
Interactive welcome information

Organisational design and structuring with the new CE
+  Knowledge systems transition management

o Project management services

o Business analysis services

o Learning and development services
o Backfilling roles

o Change management

Te Kawanatanga o Aofearoa NewZealand Government

P
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£

Joanne Harrison Status/progress update
1 Warren Smith including risks and obstacles

Megan Kitchener

Fortnightly following
commencement date

If mutually agreed in writing

If mutually agreed in writing

The Supplier must send the Buyer an invoice for the Charges at the following times:
Last business day of each month, for payment by the 20" of the following month

For the attention of:

Physical address:

Level 8, 89 The Terrace, Wellington

Postal address: P O Box 3175, Wellington 6140

INSURANCE: (clause 8.1 Schedule 2)
N/A — Exemption to be granted

P T

SCHEDULE 2 of this Contract is amended as follows:

Remove 2.4 b as the Buyer (not the: Seller) shall provide all equipment necessary to
deliver the Services

Remove 8.1 a and 8.1 b, asinsurance will ba exempted

Reword 11.2 to remove 1.2 a and 11.2 b, and to state only: ‘At any time durihg the term

of this Contract the Supplier may notify the Buyer that it wishes to terminate this Contract
by giving 20 Business Days Notice'

Personnel Confidentiality Undertaking

3 Te Kawanatanga o Aotearoa New Zezland Government
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TJo:

Personnel Confidentiality Undertaking
(clause 13.3)

Ministry of Transport
89 The Terrace
Weliington

Supplier: Elizabeth Williams
Contract Number: 15/16-013

1,

, of . Wellington, have been engaged by the

Supplxer in relation to the provision of the Services to the Ministry of Transport (the Buyer) as

set out in the Contract for Services dated

between the Buyer and the Supplier.

Confidential Information: | acknowledge and agree that:

(a)

(b)

in the course of my performing the Services for the benefit of the Buyer, 1 will receive or
have access to information relating to the Buyer's business, whether or not identified as
confidential information (subject to the following sentence) (Confidential information).
Confidential Information does not include any information previously known to me (other
than under an obligation of confidence to the Buyer), or that is public knowledge or that is
rightfully received by me from a third party who is itself not under an obligation of
confidence to the Buyer,;

| will:

() keep the Confidential Information confidential at all times and, unless agreed
otherwise by the Buyer in writing or as required by law, will not disclose or provide
access fo, communicate, copy, make available or re-§upply any Confidential
Information or use the Confidential Information for any purpose other than enabling
the Supplier to provide the Services;

(iy effect and maintain adequate security measures to safeguard the Confidential
Information from access or use by unauthorised persons, and keep the Confidential
information under my control.

Name;

Title:
Date:

Te K& Jauatcaﬁgaﬂ otearca NewZealand Government
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EY

Joanne Harrison

Subject: FW: Offer letter

Fromj

Sent: Wednesday, 21 October 2015 2113 p.m.
To: Joanne Harrison

Subject: Offer letter

HijJo

Furthe eting both you andjilfasly October, I can confirm my final day covering
, ill be Friday of this week. Please inform the Ministries payroll departments
concerned, no further payment is due in salary or other expenses.

P

“~Now, we all discussed some temporary assistance in the form of proofing, research, and report
writing going forward - Jo, thank you for the provisional offer from the Ministry of Transport. I$ this
going to be a new fixed term offer, as there will be a gap of a- week where no salary is required?

I can agree to one day per week, from 30/10/15 to 30/10/16 subject to the agreement of Human
Resources. I understand that the staff were unavailable at the time you sent the letter to me Jo.
Please confirm if the offer stands? [ have signed and returned the lettel;tg!

As discussed, I do not require equipment, desk, or any home office, thank you, the email address
correspondence is all that is required at this stage. [ must reiterate, I am not able to work full time
but I am flexible to meet your needs any day of the week.

g I'will post you a signed book, as promised. I am nearing the end of another gripping ctime drama,
| hence one day commitment only at this stage.

. ) look forward to hearing back from you, and meeting you both again next week. s 2 -
- wonderfully gentle character. (

I'would like to express my sincere thanks for the opportunities presented over recent times, I shall
endeavour to continue my support going forward.







Withheld under section 9(2)(a)

0-

k= \inistry of Transport
%§ TE MANAT;:XVAKA p

To: Martin Matthews MEMORANDUM

From: Jo Harrison

Date; 28 Qctober 2015

Through: -

Subject: Short fixed term contract

With the upcoming delivery of the Futures work, the Ministry has an ambitious programme of

publications, stories, and content for a new website, all being written in a condensed period of
time. As with all of our work, it is important that the material is of high quality, tells the right |
stories with“the right structure and right style/tone for their intended audience. Assistance with ;
writing and ‘massaging’ the content will be important before go-ixve *

As shared-cus external publications and work, OD looks to provide resources to
ensure guality, has moved on to and the external quality review pool was
disbanded some months ago. The Engagement and Communications team, whilst heavily
involved in the logistics of the Futures work, will not have capacity or capability to re-write,
structure and review the upcoming content within the condensed timeframes.

We have successfully used two writers In the past to supplement our capability, | intend to hire
two writers ra usé them as cohtractors, on a 12 month fixed term, one day per week,

total salary ole will utilise some of the salary from departure. This will not i
affect the current budget and no further funds will be re uested

3 e an erFeEL
%{g@f‘ﬂ\ Déiﬁ
Ceoienm conpiaied)
| S ode Toe
\u\ AND
specle Souy WO

Jo Harrison
GM Organisational Development

ApprovedNet-Approved

WAL NS

Martin Matthews
Chief Executive

www.transport.govt.nz

HEAD OFFICE: PO BOX 3175, Wallington 6140, New Zealand, TEL: +644 439 9000, FAX: +64 4 439 5001
AUCKLAND OFFICE: NZ Gevernment Auckland Policy Office, PO Box 106238, Auckland City 1143, New Zeatand. TEL: +64 9985 4827, FAX:, +64 9 9854849
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‘ = Ministry of Transport

.« :'_/ o~
A‘ﬂ% TE MANATO WAKA

29 October 2015

| am pleased to offer you fixed-term part-time employment with the Ministry of

Transport (“the Ministry™). Your offer of employment is on the terms contained in this
letter and the Ministry's collective agreement.

Position: Writer — OD Group
S ) Location: Wellington
Employment Fixed-term / Part-time
Category;
Fixed Term: Monday 9 November 2015 — Friday 11 November 2016
Reason for The reason for the employee being employed on a fixed-term basis is to
fixed-term:

Annual Leave:

Ordinary hours

provide writing assistance to the Organisational Development Group
whilst future requirements for the OD Group are assessed,

Four weeks per-annum (on a pro rata basis)

You will work one day per week (every Monday — for a total of 8 hours)
of work:
Total _(en a pro rata basis for period worked) —
Remuneration: e Miistry s employer contributions to your superannuatior (if any) are

KiwiSaver

paid as part of your total remuneration, rather than in addition to it. This
means that;

o if §ou are a member of KiwiSaver, this sum is inclusive of any
compulsory employer contribution that the Ministry is required to
make to your KiwiSaver under the KiwiSaver Act 2006; or

o ifyou are a member of SSRSS, this sum is inclusive of the
Ministry’s agreed employer contribution to SSRSS,

our remuneration will be paid fortnightly by direct credit into your
nominated bank account.

All new staff are automatically enrolled in KiwiSaver at the rate of 3%.
Contributions will ¢ontinue to be deducted each payday unless you opt
out. You have eight weeks after commenicement of employment fo
decide if you wish to remain a member of KiwiSaver,

- wawwnwitrangport.govi.nz
HEAD OFFICE: PO Box 3175, Wallington 6140, NewZealand, TEL:+644 439.5000, FAX; +54 4 439 900)
AUCKLAND OFFICE: The New Zedland Government « Auckland Policy Office, PO 8ox 106 238, Auckland City 1143, Neéw Zealind, TE!.: +64 9 9B5 4827, FAX:+64 9 985 4845
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- Ministry of Transport
5

TE MANATD WAKA

This agresment may be terminated by either party giving one week’s notice in writing,
with payment of salary for work carried out by the employee being paid up fo the date
of termination only, unless otherwise required by law. The employer may slsct to pay
the employee the equivalent part, or all, of his ordinary base salary in lieu of notice

for any part of that notice period and not require the employse to attend work during
that time.

This position is covered by a collective agreement between the Ministry and the Public
Service Association (PSA).

Members of the PSA are automatically bound by the terms of the collective agreement
between the Ministry and the PSA. Please advise People and Development if you are
a member of the PSA. You may choose to become a member of the PSA at any time,
in which case you will then be bound by the collective agreement between that union
and the Ministry. If you are bound by the collective agresment, additional terms and

conditions may be agreed between you and the Ministry that are not inconsistent with
the collective agreement.

- j If you are not a member of the PSA, for the first 30 days of your employment with the
s Ministry, you will be employed under an individual employment agreement based on

the same terms and conditions as contained in the collective agreement plis any

additional terms agreed between you and the Ministry that are not inconsistent with

the collective agreement. This is required under the Employment Relations Act
2000.

After 30 days, if you are not a member of the PSA your individual employment
agreement can be varied by mutual agreement between you and the Ministry. If no
variations are made, your terms and conditions will continue unaltered,

The organiser for the Public Service Association is—

Entire Agreement

The offer of employment as contained in this letter is a full record of the agresment
between you and the Ministry of Transport and supersedes any previous agresments
e or discussions. Any changes to any of these terms will need to be agreed in writing.

Acceptance of Offer

Please take your time to consider this offer. You are entitled to seek independent

advice regarding these terms. Should you wish to discuss any aspect of this offer,
please do not hesitate to contact Joanne Harrison onﬂ

If you wish to accept this offer, please sign the following section and declaration on
the enclosed copy of this letter and retum it to *in our People &
Development Team within ten days: of receipt of this letter (at which time the offer will
lapse). You may be required to undergo police and/or security vetting for this

position. Should this be required and you fail to successfully obtain appropriate
checks to the Ministry's satisfaction, your employment may be terminated.

“ www.transposrt.govt.nz
HEAD OFFICE: PO Box 3175, Wellington 6140, New Zealand. TEL: +64 4 439 9000, FAX: +64.4 439 5001
AUCKLAND OFFICE: The New Zealand Goverpment - Auckland Policy Office, PO Box 106 238, Auckland City 1143, New Zealand. TEL: +64 99854827, FAX: 1649 985 4845
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TE MANATD WAKA

On behalf of the Ministry, | extend to you a sincere welcome and trust that we will
have a mutually rewarding relationship.

ourdsincerely

Jo Harrison
GM Organisational Development

- _) Acceptance of Offer

P

| —aoknowledge that | have read, understood and accept the conditions

of this offer of employment and the terms contained in the enclosed employment
agreement.

I acknowledge that | have had the opportunity to take independent advice prior to
accepting this offer. |also declare that all information | have provided to the Ministry
in support of my application for employment is true, correct and complete.

1 understand that this information is material to the Ministry’s decision to employ

me and that | may be d|smassed if  have provided any untrue, incorrect or incomplete
information,

that | have
. | have received a copy of the State Services Code of Conduct and agree to abide
¢ D by it
Q

29/ia/s

Date

NOTE: Please return one original letter. Keep a copy for your records.

= www.iransport.govi.nz

HEAD OFFICE: PO Box 3175, Wellington 6140, New Zealand, TEL: 164 4 439 5000, FAX: +64 4 4399001
AUCKLAND OFFICE: The New Zealand Government - Auckland Folicy Office, PO Box 106 238, Auckland City 1143, Rew Zealarid. TEL: 1649 985 4817, FAX: 464 9 985 4845
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From: Joanne Harrison

Sent: Mon 9/11/2015 9:47:30 p.m

Subject: RE: Oct-Invoice

MAIL_RECEIVED: Mon 9/11/20159:47:30 pim

Thanks so much and thanks for stepping in with the HR support, given our current circumstances | am very
grateful for your additional work and kind support.

See you soon
Regards

Jo

From:'Liz
Sent: Monday, 9 November 2015 3:01 p.m.

To: Joanne Harrison
Subject: Oct - Invoice

Hido
Aftached is the invoice for October.
Kind regards

Liz

bt o o
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TE MANATO WAKA

To: MLT MEMORANDUM
From: Clif Corbett
Date: 4 December 2015

Through: Martin Matthews, David Bowden

Subject: Compliance Report: July 2014 - June 2015 Survey

) This memorandum reports on the compliance survey undertaken during July/September 2015, 1
The reporting period covered by the survey 1s 1 July 2014 to 30 June 2015. The survey utiised i
the ComplyWith survey program. |

The conduct of a compliance survey is undertaken to meet the requirement of the Audit Office
that there be a mechanism in place for monitoring the Ministry’s compliance with its statutory
obligations, and to alert management to issues of sub-optimal compliance Consequently the
Audit Office takes a close interest in the results of the survey.

Executive Summary

In general the latest survey shows a continued high level of compliance, and no major issues
are apparent from the survey responses ‘;

There are persistent instances of less than full compliance in relation to the timing of decisions
on Official Information requests.

There is also widespread uncertainty as to the existence, status or contents of a Ministry
O Business Continuity Plan.

Conduct of survey

The positions requested to complete the survey are managerial positions. In addition there is
one other staff member included in the survey, on account of his responsibilities for
Milford Aerodrome.

Responses were received from all survey recipients apart from Organisational Development
(only 17% complete).

An extract report showing compliance level ratings and related comments (but excluding N/A
and “Full” ratings) is attached for reference. h

The survey —

(a) covers the legislation that matenally applies to the Ministry’s operations. In addition to
legislation, the survey includes questions in relation to compliance with procurement
requirements, and to oversight of the Crown entities,

HEAD OFFICE PO Box 3175 Wellington, New Zealand TEL +6444721253 FAX +644473 3697 :
AUCKLAND OFFICE The Government Economic and Urban Development Office, PO Box 106 238, Auckland City New Zealand TEL +64 93790070, FAX +64 9 985 4849 ‘
CHRISTCHURCH OFFICE PO Box 3014 Chnistchurch New Zealand TEL +64 3 366 9304, FAX +64 3366 9317 i



(b)

(c)

Withheld under
section 9(2)(g)(1)

Is directed at the positions within the Ministry that are considered best placed to answer
the questions. Where appropriate, the same questions are directed at more than one
position;

has a pre-set range of available response levels The possible response levels
comprise: N/A; None (0-25% compliant); Low (26-50% compliant), Medium (51-75%
compliant); High (76-99% compliant); and Full (100% compliant) Explanatory
comments are mandatory for all levels except N/A and Full.

Analysis/discussion of resuits

(a)

(b)

(c)

(e)

Contract Documentation
Work commencing before contract signed

(i There were 2 reported instances of non-comphance within an overall context of
“full” complhance.

Timing of decisions on Official Information requests

This relates to the provision of a response within the 20 working day deadline. There
continues to be generalised reporting of missed deadlines against an overall “medium”

level of compliance. |

Business Continuity Plan

Responses generally reveal considerable uncertainty as to the existence or status of a
Business Continuity Plan. Some responses assume that there is a BCP in force that s
being complied with, while other responses are of the view that a BCP is under
development only.

Copyright

Responses rate compliance in respect of copyright from “low” to “high”, noting
reservations regarding presentations using copyright materials.

OD survey response

The gap in the survey information that has resulted from the incomplete OD survey is
unfortunate as the questions allocated to OD address a very significant proportion of the
compliance obligations that apply to the Ministry. Although extra time has been granted
to allow for completion, this has not affected the outcome.

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

Contract documentation.



2
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(i A revision of the Procurement Policy that takes account of the new Government
Rules of Sourcing has been issued Another objective of the revision has been to make
the Policy more user-friendly and coherent in its presentation. To assist with this, a
high-level overview of the Policy has also been placed on the intranet, with links to
relevant templates.

() The Organisational Development issue (numerous Instances of invoices
received and paid in circumstances where no written contracts existed for the services
in question) was the subject of discussions at senior management level. Specifically, a
recommendation was made that where It is not considered feasible to comply with
standard procedures (for example for confidentiality reasons), there be a discussion
with the Chief Executive or the Chief Legal Adviser before work commences, and a
written record made of the justification for non-compliance. Assurances were given that
the proper processes would be observed in future.

(i) The supplier pro forma contract lssue—has been addressed
through Legal working with relevant staff to encourage them to send signature copies
of all mnor pro forma supplier contracts to Legal so that they can be recorded in the
appropriate databases.

(b) Timing of decisions on OlA requests:

(c) Protected Disclosures.

The intranet protected disclosures guidance was re-issued in February 2015
(d) Copyright
The intranet copynight policy was re-issued in March 2015.

Proposed actions

The following actions are proposed to address the matters revealed by the latest survey as
requiring remedial attention:

(a) Contract documentation

There has been a recurrence of contracting non-compliance in the Organisational
Development area. This i1s of concern, especially in the wake of the actions and
understandings that resulted from the breaches in 2014. Although action has been
taken to restructure the proposed future work into discrete groupings and to apply
proper procurement processes to those groupings, the actual breach of the GETS
requirements I1s irretrievable. The issue Is not lack of awareness of the existence of the
Ministry's procurement policy as this has been discussed previously. Moreover, several
staff in OD are well aware of the requirements and follow them routinely. However,
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Legal has committed to undertake targeted procurement training to ensure that no-one
involved or likely to be involved in procurement is unaware of the requirements.

(b) Business Continuity Plan

When the Plan has been updated, it needs to be widely promuigated within the Ministry
so that all staff are made aware of their responsibilities and the actions to be taken in
the event of the Plan being activated.

(c) Copyright

Engagement and Communications have signalled that work is being undertaken to
provide full guidance to staff on seeking copyright permission for use of images in
presentations and PowerPoints.

(d) OD survey response

& - The number of questions that come within the OD remit 1s very considerable.
Consequently, resource to complete the survey is challenging. To ensure the survey
continues to be meaningful, this needs to be addressed. Legal will offer to work with
OD to devise some division of labour within OD so that the burden of completing the
survey does not fall on any one person

Timing of next survey

The next survey will be in respect of the period 1 July 2015 to 30 June 2016, and will be
conducted during July 2016.

Recommendations
It 1s recommended that — '
. MLT note the contents of this report Yes / No

. The proposed actions be agreed Yes / No

O

Chf Corbett
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From: soanne Harnson except where noted

Sent: Monday, 14 December 2015 5:06 p.m.
To: David Bowden
Subject: RE: Compliance survey/MLT paper on the compliance report

Thanks for your reply David.

Martin took time to explain the background of the survey at MLT today; it was useful to understand the
context and reason why we do this.

I asked for the memo to be withdrawn from the MLT agenda and re-submitted at a later date when a
few things were reconsidered, including the tone of the language.

Paragraph (a) (ii) states that numerous instances of invoices were received and paid with no written
contracts in place — it 1s my understanding we had a contract in place.  Withheld under section 9(2)(g)(i)

Paragraph (a) at the bottom of page 3 refers to breaches_( unders

tood tiis to be the one case that we
stopped as soon as it was raised. The contracts were allocated to rom legal and registered by

The legal team have committed to deliver procurement training for some time; the only part | know
about is when the OD group assisted with uploading/designing the intranet work explaining the
process. | apologise if your team have delivered personal training, | may have missed it.

(b) BCP is around 90% complete and today has been handed to I - shored
services/collaboration avenue will be explored further with NZTA and others instead of delivering a pure
MoT-only training or comms phase, under the assumption that our current draft will evolve to blend in to
what the rest of the sector are doing. "

(d) Survey response, resending emails and passwords with no dialogue or training has not worked for
OD, and we failed to complete the survey. Ahead of the n v ay | ask for
{aligidcaon o mysel i . -

ust have misunderstood the response and explanations, he suggested some things had
different meanings, so it would seem further clarity would help all round.

MLT appeared to like the idea suggested of proactive briefings about the survey, rather than just email,
‘ith specific training (on definitions etc) and direct engagement (in person) to assist with any future
~hallenges. Perhaps this could be considered in the proposed actions for their consideration?

Regards
Jo

From: David Bowden

Sent: Monday, 14 December 2015 10:40 a.m.

To: Joanne Harrison

Subject: RE: Compliance survey/MLT paper on the compliance report

Hi Jo,

Compliance reporting is designed to highlight for senior management how well the Ministry is complying
with relevant legislation and policies.

Not completing the survey is obviously a problem, because compliance can’t be demonstrated when no
information is provided. Significant allowances were made to enable the survey to be completed, to no
avail,
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In relation to other comments about OD:

+ Paragraph (a)(ii) on page 3 reports on what action was taken in relation to non-compliance
highlighted in the previous compliance report. It simply says what was done and agreed.

o Paragraph (a) at the bottom of page 3 says that in this reporting period (1 July 2014 — 30 June
2015) there was a further instance of contracting non-compliance. This is the one we discussed
a few months ago. The report then goes on to say that based on the assurances given in
relation to the previous non-compliance it shouldn’t have happened. Since then you have put
the work on GETS and run a proper tender process (which is what you can report to your
colleagues). Great that you have contracts in place for this work — although | think these should
have been prepared by Legal. The only contracts that are prepared by HR are ones where the
person is contracting as an individual and sitting in the Ministry, which, if | recall correctly, would
not apply to this work.

The compliance report is not targeting you personally — it is simply reporting on where non-compliance
occurs. The OD Group is where contracting non-compliance has occurred in the relevant period and
that is what is reported.

Of course | am happy to discuss.

David

From: Joanne Harrison

Sent: Friday, 11 December 2015 5:27 p.m.

To: David Bowden

Subject: Compliance survey/MLT paper on the compliance report

Hi David

| have read the paper prepared for MLT, dated 4 December 2015, from CIliff, through you and Martin,
regarding the compliance report.

There are parts of the report that | accept | need to learn from, especially the survey response. This is
not acceitable and | take responsibility. | appreciate the consideration of some support to OD with this.

as always completed the report as they are the only ones that have access to the
required information and systems. | am unsure what happened and I will look into this.

| am struggling to understand parts of the paper that specifically attack OD over contract
documentation, in particular over proposed actions.

As previously stated, we agreed that the CE would be advised of confidential/sensitive contract issues,
and this has taken place.

| understand in 2014 we had the breach that we discussed (the one that went over the $100k) we
stopped that contract after you raised the issue with Martin. We then used GETS, |JjjiJevaluated all
applicants, and we have contracts in place.

They are recorded in the contract database;JJJlilwas advised of this some time ago by I e
hold the contracts on file in HR. On the finance report we are GREEN as contracts are in place.

| disagree with the content and insinuation of the memo, it feels to be aimed directly at me, and | ask
that this be moderated please. At no time has Cliff, or any member of the team, talked to me about this
before committing to writing. | see the processes we have followed as being fully compliant. Perhaps |
have missed something at our end; if | have then | am keen to know and work with you. | do not share
the view CIiff has articulated and would appreciate discussing it with you please.

In response to the BCP comment,_has been the lead on this projecl,_is handing this
over o as he finishes next week. The BCP work ties in well with future shared services
opportunities. | understand progress has been made; it is not visible to anyone just yet. We can
progress this with in the New Year.
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Jo

Jo Harrison

General Manager

Organisational Development & Shared Services
Ministry of Transport — Te Manati Waka

Ensuring our transport system helps New Zealand thrive
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28 March 2016
Hilo

As discussed, just a quick note to say | am finishing up the retainer
arrangement as of today.

fwill leave it to ydu to cancel pay etc.

| have completed the outstanding paper, attached for you.

B,
¢ 4

| hope you have a wonderful trip ahead, safe travel. Thanks for the
opportunity, it has put my writing skills to good use.

Regards
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